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CoreCard Corporation

To the Shareholders of CoreCard Corporation,

That topline greeting, “Shareholders of CoreCard Corporation”, is a first for me although | have been writing shareholder annual
letters to many of you for 30+ years — always captioned to shareholders of Intelligent Systems. | know there are many
shareholders (including one or two of our largest holders) who have made this journey with me over that period. | am also aware
that there are some of you who have a disproportionate share of your wealth invested with us (including several older than
myself) and while | may question your judgment for lack of diversification, | too am a big shareholder and share the same goals.

There are many newer shareholders who have told me they are invested for the long haul. | have to be honest and say those
that are in it for the long steady journey are those that we feel will be most comfortable with their holding in CoreCard as we plan
to continue on a steady path in a world that has the last few years often overvalued (my opinion) companies that spend big to get
top-line growth while ignoring profits. Please know we are acutely conscious and humbled with the trust you have placed in us
and the responsibility for the decisions we make on your behalf as we manage your company.

Dropping the “Intelligent Systems” name and adopting the name “CoreCard Corporation” represents just one of the more visible
ways your company has adapted as it continues to grow. We grew 2021 revenues to $48+ million, 34% year over year growth.
We set the expectation last year that we expected to average growth of 20-25% over the next 5 years and that is still true.

We cannot let that success become a barrier to recognizing the need to change. Continuing successful performance is
contingent on smoothly managing a variety of transitions that involve strategies, structure, and people. We will make the
transition planned and seamless and not forced, as often happens, by a bad financial year, lagging technology, or a changing
competitive landscape. It is pretty common knowledge that many companies fail to make the changes required to move to the
next level. We get it — and will do it quietly without fanfare, the same way we have managed the company to this point.

We are on a journey to protect and continuously improve our position as the most nimble and innovative company in the credit
card issuing world. The “boiler plate” we use in press releases states who we are well and is worth repeating:

“CoreCard provides a pioneering card management platform built for the future of global transactions in a digital world. Dedicated
to continual technological innovation in the ever-evolving payments industry backed by decades of deep expertise in credit card
offerings, CoreCard helps customers conceptualize, implement, and manage all aspects of their issuing card programs. Keenly
focused on steady, sustainable growth, CoreCard has earned the trust of some of the largest companies and financial institutions
in the world, providing truly real-time transactions via their proven, reliable platform operating on private on-premise and leading
cloud technology infrastructure.”

Non-disclosure Agreements often prohibit us from naming customers, but the business press has accurately reported that
CoreCard software processes the most innovative and successful credit card in the world issued by one of the most well-
respected banks and co-labeled with Mastercard for one of the largest companies in the world. CoreCard likes the phrase “you
are known by the company you keep!”

Being aligned, partnering, and providing services for well-known companies that have sterling international reputations creates a
special obligation on CoreCard to always improve and be forward looking to maintain that relationship. While we know that it is
no easy task to transition credit card processors, it can be done, and we want to make certain that none of our partners ever see
the need to change processing software because CoreCard fell out of the lead in its ability to provide unique innovative card
programs or could not handle high volumes. | can assure you that there is no greater priority for everyone in the company than to
make good on that commitment.

| mentioned earlier that we are on a “journey.” | am sure many of you are familiar with the phrase “Are we there yet?” It was often
said by two children in a movie by that name and is frequently used in graduation speeches to challenge new graduates. |
certainly remember my 3 boys asking it numerous times as our young family drove from Georgia to Dallas, Texas on holidays to
visit my mom and dad many years ago (usually about 30 minutes into a 12-14 hour trip).

Are we there yet? | sense that to be the essence of many questions that come from shareholders trying to place us at a point in
time on a map. We are not even close to being “there” wherever “there” is. This journey has already been long, and it has many,



many more points or years to go. That is the great thing about complex financial credit card software. While it has a “long life” it is
always in transition and even more so as the world becomes more digital.

We are all impatient. We all want to get to the destination. While we cannot even point you to our eventual destination, we do
have a sense of where our journey will take us the next few years. You do, of course, need to know where your next few stops
are on a journey and have those milestones in mind.

There’s a story about a farmer, riding in his tractor, pulling a plow, and without any technological aides. In the cab with him is his
young grandson who could easily see how perfectly straight the half mile row seemed to be. So, he asked, “grandpa, how do you
make the row so straight?” Grandpa answered, “I pick out a faraway point on the horizon, and | aim for that point.”

We have internal “points” we are aiming at with management and technology and you need to keep in mind that you are
accomplishing those things while interacting constantly with partners and team members as human beings. Shareholders
(owners) are important, and we are old fashioned in believing ultimate value for shareholders is best projected by discounted
cash flows. But we are similarly attuned to the need to balance the immediate financial numbers with how you care for your team
(employees) and partners (customers). For both, you have to sincerely care about them. We do. And our team members really
and sincerely care about our partners as evidenced over and over as they go beyond what would be a normal expectation. We
have some new plans to show our team members how much we care later this year.

When you combine an elite, experienced, and well-trained team who truly cares about each other and cares for their partners
with ever evolving nimble innovative credit card software (that the team developed), with partners who demand and expect
excellence, with stable financial resources providing a foundation for growth, | think you can expect a successful journey.

4%4/%7&

.Leland Strange
PreSIdent and Chief Executive Officer
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One Meca Way
Norcross, Georgia 30093

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

YOU ARE INVITED TO attend the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of CoreCard Corporation on Thursday, May 26, 2022 at 4:00 p.m.,
local time, at our principal executive offices located at One Meca Way, Norcross, Georgia 30093. At the Annual Meeting, shareholders
will consider and vote on:

1. The election of one director to the Board of Directors to serve until the 2025 Annual Meeting;
2. Approval, by a non-binding, advisory vote, of the compensation of our named executive officers;
3. Aproposal to approve the CoreCard Corporation 2022 Employee Stock Incentive Plan; and

4.  Other matters that may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Only shareholders of record at the close of business on April 4, 2022 will receive notice of and be entitled to vote at the meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

A Proxy Statement and a proxy solicited by the Board of Directors are enclosed with this mailing. To ensure a quorum for the
meeting and that your vote may be recorded, please sign, date and return the proxy promptly in the enclosed business reply
envelope. If you attend the meeting, you may revoke your proxy and vote in person. Our 2021 Annual Report to Shareholders is
enclosed in the same document as the Proxy Statement.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Aotthoe A. 04t

MATTHEW A. WHITE
Secretary

April 8, 2022

Please complete and return the enclosed proxy promptly so that your vote may be recorded






PROXY STATEMENT
FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD MAY 26, 2022

We are sending this Proxy Statement to the shareholders of CoreCard Corporation (the “company”) in connection with the
solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) to be voted at the 2022 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “Annual
Meeting”) of CoreCard Corporation and any adjournment thereof. The Annual Meeting will be held on May 26, 2022 at our principal
executive offices located at One Meca Way, Norcross, Georgia 30093 at 4:00 p.m. local time. We expect to mail this Proxy
Statement and the accompanying proxy to shareholders on or about April 8, 2022.

VOTING
General

The securities that can be voted at the Annual Meeting consist of common stock of CoreCard Corporation, $.01 par value per
share. Each share entitles its owner to one vote on each matter submitted to the shareholders. There are no cumulative voting
rights. The record of shareholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting was taken as of the close of business on April 4, 2022.
On that date, we had outstanding and entitled to vote 8,618,951 shares of common stock with each share entitled to one vote.

Quorum

A majority of the outstanding shares of our common stock must be present, in person or by proxy, to constitute a quorum at the Annual
Meeting. We will treat shares subject to abstentions or broker non-votes as present at the Annual Meeting for purposes of determining
a quorum. Abstentions and broker non-votes occur when a bank, broker, or other nominee of shares held in street name is not
permitted to vote without instructions from the shareholder and such instructions have not been given. Abstentions and broker non-
votes are not counted as a vote cast and will have no effect on the vote on any proposal.

Required Vote

Philip H. Moise, the incumbent nominee for election as director, will be reelected if more votes are cast “For” than are cast “Against”
him. If more votes are cast Against, the nominee is required to submit his resignation subject to acceptance by the Board. The other
members of the Board will determine the action to be taken with respect to the resignation and will publicly announce their decision
and the rationale therefor.

With respect to Proposal 2 — TO APPROVE, BY A NON-BINDING ADVISORY VOTE, THE COMPENSATION OF OUR NAMED
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, the proposal will be approved if more votes are cast “For” than are cast “Against” the proposal. The proposal
is advisory and nonbinding. The Board will review the result of the vote and take it into account when making future compensation
decisions.

With respect to Proposal 3 - TO APPROVE OF THE CORECARD CORPORATION 2022 EMPLOYEE STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN,
the proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of votes cast. Because a vote to abstain on this proposal would be a vote cast,
an abstention would be a vote AGAINST the proposal. However, because a broker non-vote does not result in a vote cast, a broker
non-vote will have no effect on the outcome of the vote.

Proxies

At the Annual Meeting, the persons named as proxies will vote all properly executed proxy cards delivered in connection with this
solicitation and not revoked in accordance with the directions given. Shareholders should specify their choices with regard to each
proposal to be voted upon on the accompanying proxy card. If no specific instructions are given with regard to a proposal to be
voted upon, then the shares represented by a signed proxy card will be voted “FOR” such proposal. If any other matters
properly come before the Annual Meeting, the persons named as proxies will vote upon such matters according to their judgment.

Some of our shareholders hold their shares through a broker, bank, custodian or other nominee, rather than directly in their own
name. This is commonly referred to as holding shares in “street name.” If you hold shares in street name, these proxy materials
are being forwarded to you by your broker, bank, custodian or other nominee, which is considered, with respect to such shares, to
be the shareholder of record. As the beneficial owner of shares held in street name, you have the right to direct the nominee how
such shares should be voted. You also have the right to attend the Annual Meeting. However, since you are not the shareholder
of record, you must first obtain a signed proxy from the shareholder of record giving you the right to vote the shares at the Annual
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Meeting. Your broker, bank, custodian or other nominee has enclosed or provided you voting instructions for you to use in directing
the nominee how to vote your shares or obtain a proxy from the nominee.

You may revoke your proxy in connection with this solicitation at any time prior to voting at the Annual Meeting by:
e giving written notice to the Secretary of the company at One Meca Way, Norcross, Georgia 30093, or

e executing and delivering to the Secretary a later dated proxy, or

e voting in person at the Annual Meeting.

You cannot revoke your proxy or voting instructions as to any matter upon which, prior to such revocation, a vote has been cast in
accordance with the authority conferred by such proxy or voting instructions.

We will pay all expenses incurred in connection with the solicitation of proxies. Such costs include charges by brokers, fiduciaries and
custodians for forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners of stock held in their names. We may solicit proxies by mail, telephone
and personal contact by directors, officers, and employees of the company without additional compensation.

Dissenters’ Rights of Appraisal

There are no dissenters’ rights of appraisal with respect to the matters being acted upon at the Annual Meeting.



Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table contains information concerning the persons who are known to us to be beneficial owners of more than 5
percent of our common stock as of March 15, 2022, and the ownership of our common stock as of that date by each director and
director nominee, each executive officer named in the Summary Compensation Table and by all directors, director nominees and
named executive officers as a group. There are no arrangements known to us which may result in change of control of the company.

o

Shares Percent
Beneficial Owner Address Beneficially of Class ?
Owned "

J. Leland Strange ¢

Chairman of the Board, President, CEQ One Meca Way 1,548,188 18.0%
Norcross, GA 30093

Clifford N. Burnsteind 729 71 Avenue 835,445 9.7%
New York, NY 10019

Wallace R. Weitz & Company ¢ 1125 South 103rd St., Suite 200 615,000 7.1%
Omaha, NE 68124

Janus Henderson Group PLCf 201 Bishopsgate 536,962 6.2%
EC2m 3AE, United Kingdom

BlackRock, Inc.9 55 East 52nd Street 445,132 5.1%
New York, NY 1005

A. Russell Chandler, Ill, Directorh 40,941 *

Philip H. Moise, Director 21,321 *

Elizabeth W. Camp, Director 2,941 *

Matthew A. White 30,000 *

Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary

All Directors and Named Executive Officers 1,643,391 18.9%

as a Group (5 persons)

Except as otherwise noted, beneficial ownership is determined on the basis of 8,618,951 shares of common stock outstanding plus securities deemed outstanding
pursuant to Rule 13d-3(d)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Pursuant to the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), a
person is deemed to beneficially own shares of the company’s common stock if that person has or shares “voting power”, which includes the power to vote or to
direct the voting of a security, or “investment power”, which includes the power to dispose of or to direct the disposition of a security. An asterisk indicates beneficial
ownership of less than 1 percent. In computing the number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by a person or entity and the percentage ownership of that
person or entity, we deemed to be outstanding all shares of common stock subject to options or other convertible securities held by that person or entity that are
currently exercisable or that will become exercisable within 60 days of March 15, 2022. We did not deem these shares outstanding, however, for the purpose of
computing the percentage ownership of any other person or entity.

Includes 59,000 shares reserved for issuance to officers and directors pursuant to stock options that were exercisable at March 15, 2022 or within sixty days of such
date which are deemed beneficially owned by such person pursuant to Rule 13d-3(d)(1) of the Exchange Act. The amounts reported above for Mr. White include
30,000 shares for shares underlying stock options exercisable at March 15, 2022 or within sixty days of such date. The amount reported for Mr. Moise includes
16,000 shares for shares underlying stock options exercisable at March 15, 2022, or within sixty days of such date. The amount reported for Mr. Chandler includes
13,000 shares for shares underlying stock options exercisable at March 15, 2022, or within sixty days of such date.

Shares are jointly owned by J. Leland Strange and Jane H. Strange, Mr. Strange’s wife.

Based solely on information set forth in a Schedule 13D filed on August 3, 2009, in which Clifford N. Burnstein, an individual, reported beneficial ownership of 835,445
shares of common stock, of which Clifford N. Burnstein has the sole power to vote and to dispose.

Based solely on information set forth in a Schedule 13G filed on January 14, 2022, in which Wallace R. Weitz and Company, an investment adviser registered under
Section 203 of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, reported beneficial ownership of 615,000 shares of common stock, of which Wallace R. Weitz and Company
has the sole power to vote and to dispose.

Based solely on information set forth in a Schedule 13G filed on February 10, 2022, in which Janus Henderson Group PLC, an investment adviser registered under
Section 203 of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, reported beneficial ownership of 536,962 shares of common stock, of which Janus Henderson Group PLC has
the sole power to vote and to dispose.

Based solely on information set forth in a Schedule 13G filed on February 1, 2022, in which BlackRock, Inc., an investment adviser registered under Section 203 of
the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, reported beneficial ownership of 445,132 shares of common stock, of which BlackRock, Inc. has the sole power to vote and to
dispose.

Includes 8,000 shares owned by a not-for-profit trust controlled by Mr. Chandler.



PROPOSAL 1 - THE ELECTION OF ONE DIRECTOR
Nominee

At the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, shareholders will elect one director to the Board to serve a three-year term until the 2025
Annual Meeting of Shareholders. The other directors’ terms expire at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders listed in the following
table for each category of directors, or upon their earlier death, resignation or removal from office.

If the nominee withdraws for any reason or is not able to continue to serve as a director, the proxy will be voted for another person
designated by the Board as substitute nominee, but in no event will the proxy be voted for more than one nominee. The Board has no
reason to believe that the nominee will not serve if elected.

The Board has nominated the person named in the following table to serve as a director of the company. The nominee and other
directors gave us the following information concerning their current age, other directorships, positions with the company, principal
employment and shares of our common stock beneficially owned as of March 15, 2022.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE “FOR” PROPOSAL 1 TO
ELECT ONE NOMINEE TO SERVE AS A DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

Name Age  Position / Principal Occupation

Nominee for election to serve until the 2025 Annual Meeting

Philip H. Moise *.233 72 Director, Retired Executive Vice President and General Counsel of Immucor,
Inc.

Incumbent directors elected to serve until the 2023 Annual Meeting
Elizabeth W. Camp .2&3 70 Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of DF Management, Inc.
A. Russell Chandler, IIl 1. 2&3 77 Director, Retired, Chairman of Whitehall Group, Ltd.

Incumbent director elected to serve until the 2024 Annual Meeting
J. Leland Strange 80 Director, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

1. Audit Committee
2. Compensation Committee
3. Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

A. Russell Chandler, Ill, has served as a director since 2017. Mr. Chandler has served as a director of Miller Industries, Inc., a
publicly traded manufacturer of towing and recovery equipment, since April 1994. He is founder and Chairman of Whitehall Group
Ltd., a private investment firm based in Atlanta, Georgia. Mr. Chandler served as Chairman of Precyse Technologies Inc. in 2010
and as its Chief Executive Officer through May 2013. Mr. Chandler served as Chairman of Datapath, Inc., a company that built
mobile communications trailers for military applications, from October 2004 until June 2006 and he served as the Mayor of the
Olympic Village for the Atlanta Committee for the Olympic Games from 1990 through August 1996. From 1987 to 1993, he served
as Chairman of United Plastic Films, Inc., a manufacturer and distributor of plastic bags. He founded Qualicare, Inc., a hospital
management company, in 1972 and served as its President and Chief Executive Officer until its sale in 1983. The Board considered
Mr. Chandler’s extensive experience as an executive and long term tenure as a member of the board of directors of a publicly
traded company, as well as his operational and strategic insight in determining that he should serve as a director of the company.
The Board has determined that Mr. Chandler qualifies as an independent director under the applicable rules of NYSE.

Philip H. Moise has served as a director since 2013. Mr. Moise served as Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
of Immucor, Inc. from 2007 until 2012. Immucor manufactures and sells instruments and reagents used to classify components of
human blood prior to blood therapies and transfusions. Previously a publicly-held company, Immucor was acquired and taken private
in 2011. Before joining Immucor, Mr. Moise was in the private practice of law for almost 30 years, where he represented public and
private companies in the technology and life sciences industries. He represented CoreCard and its predecessors for approximately 25
years before joining Immucor in 2007. The Board considered Mr. Moise’s familiarity with the company’s business and history; his
business experience as an executive with a publicly traded company; his extensive legal background and experience in corporate



transactions and corporate governance; and his familiarity with board and regulatory matters impacting publicly traded companies in
determining that he should serve as a director of the company. The Board has determined that Mr. Moise qualifies as an independent
director under the applicable rules of NYSE.

Elizabeth W. Camp has served as a director since 2020. She is President and Chief Executive Officer of DF Management, Inc., a
private investment and commercial real estate management company, a position she has held since 2000. Previously and for 16
years, Ms. Camp served in various capacities, including President and Chief Executive Officer, of Camp Oil Company. Before its sale
in 2000, Camp Oil developed and operated convenience stores, truck stops and restaurants in nine states. Ms. Camp holds a
bachelor's degree in accounting and a law degree from the University of Georgia, as well as a master's degree in taxation from
Georgetown Law Center. Ms. Camp is a current director or trustee on the boards of several non-profit organizations, including the
Woodruff Arts Foundation, University of Georgia Foundation, the Atlanta chapter of the NACD, and the Boy Scouts of America, Atlanta
Area Council. She has received the designation of Board Leadership Fellow by the NACD and is an independent member of the board
of directors of Genuine Parts Company, a public company engaged in the global distribution of automotive and industrial replacement
parts, where she serves on its audit committee. Ms. Camp is the Lead Director and Chair of the Corporate Governance and Nominating
Committee of Synovus Financial Corp and formerly served as Chair of its Audit and Compensation Committees. The Board considered
Ms. Camp’s background as an executive officer, her experience on public-company boards of directors, particularly in the banking
industry, her experience in management and auditing and her expertise in accounting, tax and legal matters in determining that she
should serve as a director of the company. The Board has determined that Ms. Camp qualifies as an independent director under the
rules of NYSE.

J. Leland Strange has served as our President since 1983 and our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board since 1985.
The Board considered Mr. Strange’s many years of experience as the company’s CEO, his familiarity with the industries and customers
which our operating companies serve, and his past experience on several boards of directors and audit and compensation committees
of other publicly traded companies in determining that he should serve as a director of the company.

There are no family relationships among any of the company’s directors or executive officers.

There have been no events under any bankruptcy act, no criminal proceedings and no judgments or injunctions material to an
evaluation of the ability and integrity of any director, executive officer or control person of the company during the past ten years. There
are no proceedings to which any director, officer, affiliate, any owner of record or beneficially of more than 5 percent of our common
stock, or any security holder of the company is an adverse party to the company or has a material interest adverse to the company.

Three of the directors and all of the members of the Audit Committee are independent, as such term is defined in the listing standards
of the NYSE and the rules of the SEC. The Audit Committee meets the composition requirements of NYSE's listing (as defined by the
rules of NYSE).

Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Oversight

The Chief Executive Officer serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the company. Given the size and scope of the company’s
operations, the company believes that the leadership structure of the Board, consisting of four directors of which three are independent,
is appropriate. There is no lead independent director because there has been no need for such a role based on the continuity resulting
from the tenure of the directors and the small size of the Board. Given the character, size and scope of the company’s operations and
the stability and long tenure of its workforce and management team, there is limited exposure to external risks other than general
business, product and market risks. The company has limited, if any, exposure related to financial instruments, environmental issues,
off balance sheet entities and such external risks. The Audit Committee, which consists of the independent directors, provides risk
oversight as part of the company’s internal controls process and regularly reviews reports from management and external auditors on
risk analysis and tests of the design and effectiveness of the company’s internal controls. The Board considered and has determined
that risks arising from its compensation policies and practices are not reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
company. This determination was based on the limited nature of the company’s compensation program.

Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors
The Board met five times during the year ended December 31, 2021. The Board has established an Audit Committee, a Compensation
Committee and a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The Audit Committee of the Board met five times in 2021. During

2021, the Audit Committee consisted of Mr. Chandler (chair), Mr. Moise and Ms. Camp. In 2021, the Audit Committee appointed the
company’s independent auditor to review its report on the 2021 audit and the 2021 quarterly reviews, and carried out a number of
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other responsibilities, as outlined in the Audit Committee Charter. In 2021, the Board approved our move to the NYSE from the NYSE
American as well as our name change to CoreCard Corporation and ticker symbol change to “CCRD.”

All members of the Audit Committee currently meet the applicable independence and qualifications standards of the NYSE. The Board
has determined that Mr. Chandler is a financial expert as defined by the rules of the SEC and is financially sophisticated as defined in
the listing standards of NYSE. The Board based this determination, in part, on Mr. Chandler’s experience in actively supervising senior
financial and accounting personnel and in overseeing the preparation of financial statements as the audit committee chair of publicly-
traded companies.

The Board has a Compensation Committee consisting of three independent directors, Mr. Chandler, Mr. Moise (chair) and Ms. Camp.
The Compensation Committee met twice in 2021. The Compensation Committee reviews, makes recommendations and approves
the appropriate compensation level for the officers of the company and any changes in the company’s various benefit plans covering
executive officers or directors as well as administering the company’s stock incentive plans. Neither the Compensation Committee nor
management has engaged a compensation consultant to provide advice or recommendations on the form or amount of executive or
director compensation. From time to time, the Compensation Committee has sought input from publicly available data compiled by
executive officers of the company relating to compensation paid to executive officers and directors in similar size, publicly traded
companies in the same geographic area or industry as the company. The Compensation Committee has also solicited input from the
CEO with respect to compensation of non-CEO executive officers.

The Compensation Committee considers compensation data based on a comparator group. Our comparator group is intended to
be representative of the market in which we compete most directly for executive talent. The selection of companies comprising our
comparator group is based on similarity in revenue size, lines of business, participation in global markets and market capitalization.
The peer group is constructed to target CoreCard near the median of the composite ranking of the financial and operating metrics
of the companies in the comparator group. The comparator group used in 2020 to set 2021 compensation was:

PaySign ‘ American Software Margeta ‘ Usio

The Board has a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee consisting of three independent directors, Mr. Chandler, Mr.
Moise and Ms. Camp (chair). The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee met once in 2021. The Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee was established to assist the Board with (i) Board and committee organization, membership and
function, (i) oversight of the evaluation of director qualifications and performance, and (iii) corporate governance. As part of these
responsibilities, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee evaluates candidates for service as directors of the Company,
conducts the Board’s annual self-assessment process and recommends corporate governance principles for adoption by the Board.
The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider candidates recommended by shareholders. Shareholder
recommendations must comply with the procedures for director nominations set forth in Article Three, Section 3.9, of the Company’s
bylaws and applicable law.

In 2021, each director attended all meetings of the Board and Committees on which they served.
Executive Officers
The following information is provided about our non-director executive officer:

Name Age Position / Principal Occupation
Matthew A. White 40 Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

Matthew A. White was elected on January 22, 2019, as Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary. Mr. White was previously
serving as VP Finance and CFO of CoreCard Software, the main operating subsidiary of CoreCard and he will continue to serve in
that role. Prior to joining CoreCard Software Mr. White held various accounting and financial reporting positions at Humana and, most
recently, Equifax. Prior to that he was a Senior Manager in the audit practice at Deloitte and is a licensed CPA.

The Board of Directors elects the executive officers to serve until they are removed, replaced or resign.



Executive Compensation

Summary Compensation Table

Name and Principal Option Other Annual
Position Year Salary Bonus Awards: Compensation Total
$ $ $ $ $

J. Leland Strange 2021 350,000 400,000 - 4,350 754,350
President & Chief 2020 350,000 350,000 - 4,073 704,073
Executive Officer

Matthew A. White 2021 230,000 80,000 - 3,377 313,377
Chief Financial 2020 200,000 60,000 - 1,949 261,949
Officer & Secretary

The table above sets forth information regarding compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to the company’s CEO and the
company’s most highly compensated person serving as an executive officer during the fiscal year other than the CEO (the “Named
Executive Officers”). The Compensation Committee endeavors to provide compensation arrangements that are reasonable given the
company’s size, the nature of its business and the executive’s duties; align pay with creating shareholder value; minimize risky
behavior; and reward the executive for his/her contribution to achieving our business goals. Given the nature of our business, the small
number of executives and the significant ownership held by Mr. Strange, the Compensation Committee believes that a straight-forward
compensation plan that is economical to administer and that consists of a reasonable base salary and appropriate periodic bonuses
is appropriate for the company. None of the Named Executive Officers has an employment agreement with the company and the
company does not have any corporate non-equity incentive plans or nonqualified deferred compensation plans. From time to time,
officers may be awarded bonuses to recognize achievement of corporate or subsidiary goals or other accomplishments. Mr. Strange
and Mr. White were awarded bonuses in 2020 and 2021 in recognition of the growth of the company in 2020 and 2021. No options
were re-priced in the two year period ended December 31, 2021. All Other Annual Compensation shown above includes matching
contributions by the company to the respective accounts of the executive officers pursuant to the terms of our Tax-Deferred Savings
and Protection Plan (the “401(k) Plan”). Such amounts are fully vested. It is our policy to provide executives with the same benefits
provided to other employees with respect to medical, dental, life insurance and 401(k) plans.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

Option Awards
Number of Securities ~ Number of Securities
Underlying Underlying
Unexercised Options ~ Unexercised Options
(#) #) Option Option
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Exercise Price Expiration Date
Matthew A. White 20,000 10,000 1 $19.99 01/21/2029

1. Stock options were issued on January 22, 2019 and vest in one third increments on the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date.



Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table gives information as of December 31, 2021 about the company’s common stock that may be issued under the
2011 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan, the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended in 2011, the 2015 Stock Incentive
Plan and the 2020 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan. All plans were approved by shareholders.

(c) Number of securities
remaining available for future

(a) Number of securities to  (b) Weighted-average issuance under equity
be issued upon exercise exercise price of compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options,  (excluding securities reflected
Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights in column (a))
Equity compensation plans 59,000 $17.35 881,177
approved by security holders 1
Equity compensation plans not - - -
approved by security holders
Total 59,000 $17.35 881,177

1. Information pertains to the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, the 2011 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan, the 2015 Stock Incentive Plan and the
2020 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan.



Director Compensation

The table below sets forth all compensation earned by non-executive directors in the year ended December 31, 2021. The company
has a Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan, which allows for an annual grant of $50,000 of common stock with the number
of shares determined by the closing price on the date of the Annual Meeting.

Fees Earned or Paid in Cash Stock Awards! Total
Name $ $ $
A. Russell Chandler, IlI 50,000 50,000 100,000
Philip H. Moise 50,000 50,000 100,000
Elizabeth W. Camp 50,000 50,000 100,000

1. Pursuant to the 2020 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan, in 2021 each director received 1,481 shares of common stock based on the closing
price as of the date of the 2021 Annual Meeting for a total fair value of $50,000 each.

In 2021, all non-employee directors had the same compensation plan. There was no additional compensation for serving on a
committee of the Board of Directors. Total cash compensation for annual board service was $50,000, earned quarterly. Effective
August 7, 2020, the company adopted the 2020 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan, which allows for an annual grant of
$50,000 of common stock with the number of shares determined by the closing price on the date of the Annual Meeting.

Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee Charter, which is reviewed annually, includes organization and membership requirements, a statement of
policy and the Committee's authority and responsibilities.

Management is responsible for our company’s internal controls and the financial reporting process. The independent auditors are
responsible for performing an independent audit of the company’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with auditing
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (‘PCAOB”) and for issuing a report thereon. As
outlined in more detail in the Audit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee’s responsibility is generally to approve all services
provided by and compensation paid to the independent auditors; review the adequacy of the company’s internal and disclosure
controls and risk management practices; review and monitor the annual audit of the financial statements including the financial
statements produced and notes thereto; review SEC filings containing the company’s financial statements; regularly meet with the
independent auditors and management in separate sessions; and authorize investigations into any matter within the scope of their
responsibilities. During fiscal year 2021 and through March 15, 2022, among its other activities, the Audit Committee:

e engaged the independent auditors and established their compensation;

o reviewed and discussed with management and the independent auditors the audited financial statements of the company as
of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended;

o discussed with the independent auditors their reviews of the quarterly unaudited financial statements of the company for
fiscal 2021;

o discussed with the independent auditors the matters required to be discussed by the applicable requirements of the PCAOB
and the SEC; and

o received from the independent auditors the written disclosures and written affirmation of their independence required by
PCAOB Rule 3526 and discussed with the auditors the firm’s independence.

Based upon the reviews and discussions summarized above, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board (and the Board has
approved) that the audited financial statements be included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2021 for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
A. Russell Chandler, Il (Chair)
Philip H. Moise
Elizabeth W. Camp




Nominations Process

The Board has appointed a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee consisting of three independent directors, A.
Russell Chandler, IlI, Philip H. Moise and Elizabeth W. Camp. The same individuals also nominate the officers of the company for
election by the Board.

The Board has not previously formed a policy with respect to consideration of candidates nominated by shareholders since there
have been no such nominations. However, it is the Board’s intent to consider any security holder nominees that may be properly
and timely put forth in the future. The Board has not identified any specific, minimum qualifications or skills that it believes must be
met by a nominee for director. The company does not have a specific policy with respect to diversity in identifying nominees for
director. In considering nominations for the 2022 Annual Meeting, the Board reviewed the appropriate size of the Board and the
skills and characteristics of directors in the context of the current make-up, background and experience of the Board and the
requirements and needs of the company in the foreseeable future. Security holders wishing to nominate a candidate for
consideration at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders in 2023 should submit the nominee’s name, affiliation and other pertinent
information along with a statement as to why such person should be considered for nomination. Such nominations should be
addressed to the Board in care of the Secretary of the company and be received no later than 60 days before the date of the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders. The Board will evaluate any such nominees in a manner similar to that for all director nominees.

Majority Voting in Uncontested Director Elections

Our bylaws contain a majority voting standard for the election of directors in an uncontested election. Accordingly, each nominee
must be elected by the vote of a majority of the votes cast by the shares present in person or represented by proxy. A “majority of
the votes cast” means that the number of shares voted “for” a director’s election must exceed the number of votes “against” such
nominee, excluding abstentions. Abstentions do not count as a vote “for” or “against” a director.

In addition, our Board has adopted a director resignation policy governing procedures in the event that a director does not receive
a majority of the votes cast. Pursuant to the Board'’s director resignation policy, if an incumbent director fails to receive the required
vote for re-election in an uncontested election, that director shall promptly tender, to the Board or its Chairperson, his or her
resignation from the Board and from those Board committees on which the director serves, conditioned upon Board acceptance.
The Nominating Committee will promptly consider such resignation and then make a recommendation to the Board whether to
accept or reject the resignation tendered by such director. The Board will act on the tendered resignation, taking into account the
recommendation of the Nominating Committee as well as other potentially relevant factors, no later than 180 days from the date
of the certification of the election results. The director whose resignation is under consideration shall not participate in the
deliberations of the Nominating Committee or of the Board with respect to his or her resignation.

The Nominating Committee, in making its recommendation, and the Board, in making its decision, may consider any factors or
other information that it considers appropriate and relevant, including any stated reasons why the shareholders voted against or
withheld votes from such director, the director’s tenure, the director’s qualifications, the director’s past and expected contributions
to the Board, and the overall composition of the Board, including whether accepting the resignation as tendered would cause the
Company to fail to meet the requirements of any law, regulation, or rule, including but not limited to those of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) or the listing standards of the NYSE.

Following the Board’s decision, the Company will promptly disclose the Board's decision regarding whether to accept or reject the
director's resignation offer in a Form 8-K furnished to the SEC. If the Board has decided to reject the tendered resignation or to
pursue any additional action, then the disclosure will include the rationale behind the decision.

Communication Between Security Holders and the Board of Directors

Security holders wishing to communicate with members of the Board should send a letter to the Secretary of the company with
instructions as to which director(s) is to receive the communication. The Secretary will forward the written communication to each
member of the Board identified by the security holder or, if no individual director is identified, to all members of the Board. The
company has not in the past required members of the Board to attend each Annual Meeting of Shareholders because the formal
meetings have been attended by very few shareholders and have generally been very brief and procedural in nature. The Board
will continue to monitor shareholder interest and attendance at future meetings and reevaluate this policy as appropriate.
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PROPOSAL 2 - TO APPROVE, BY A NON-BINDING, ADVISORY VOTE, THE COMPENSATION OF OUR NAMED
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

We are asking our shareholders to provide advisory approval of the compensation of our Named Executive Officers, as described in
the Executive Compensation section of this Proxy Statement. While this vote is advisory and non-binding on the company, it will
provide information to our Compensation Committee regarding investor sentiment about our executive compensation philosophies,
policies and practices which the Compensation Committee will be able to consider for the remainder of 2022 and beyond. The
compensation of our Named Executive Officers and our compensation philosophies and practices are described in the Executive
Compensation discussion and accompanying tables.

The Compensation Committee endeavors to provide compensation arrangements that are reasonable given the company’s size, the
nature of its business and the executive’s duties and that align pay with creating shareholder value, minimize risky behavior, and
reward the executive for his/her contribution to achieving our business goals. Given the nature of our business, the small number of
our executives, and the significant ownership held by Mr. Strange, the Compensation Committee believes that a straight-forward
compensation plan that is economical to administer and that consists of a reasonable base salary and appropriate periodic bonuses
is appropriate for the company.

Neither the approval nor the disapproval of this proposal will be binding on us or the Board or will be construed as overruling decisions
by us or the Board. The company intends to provide shareholder advisory votes on its compensation of Named Executive Officers
annually.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE “FOR” PROPOSAL 2
APPROVING THE COMPENSATION OF OUR NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS.

PROPOSAL 3 - TO APPROVE THE CORECARD CORPORATION 2022 EMPLOYEE STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
The CoreCard Corporation 2022 Employee Stock Incentive Plan (the “2022 Plan”) is attached as Appendix A to this proxy statement.
The proposed 2022 Plan is intended to replace the existing 2015 Employee Stock Incentive Plan (the “2015 Plan”) and would permit
a variety of equity-based grants to be made for employees and non-employees (i.e. consultants and advisors).
Approval of the 2022 Plan requires the affirmative vote of a majority of votes cast. Because a vote to abstain on this proposal would
be a vote cast, an abstention would be a vote AGAINST the proposal. However, because a broker non-vote does not result in a vote
cast, a broker non-vote will have no effect on the outcome of the vote.
Summary of the Plan
The 2022 Plan will permit the following types of equity-based awards:
(@)  Incentive Stock Options (“ISO”) and Non-Qualified Stock Options to acquire shares of the Company’s common stock (par
value of $.01 per share) (“Common Stock”); and
(b)  Stock Appreciation Rights (“SAR”) and various types of restricted stock awards (i.e. Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock
Units and Dividend Equivalent Rights) of the Company’s Common Stock that may be subject to vesting conditions, or that
may be fully vested at grant.
Eligibility

All employees, consultants and advisors will be eligible for equity-based Awards under the New Plan. We do not expect to grant
more than an average of 75,000 shares per year under the plan.

Term of the New Plan
The New Plan will have a term of ten years measured from the date of its approval by the shareholders.
Shares Subject to the New Plan

No more than 750,000 shares of common stock may be issued pursuant to the New Plan.
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Terms and Conditions of Options
Options granted under the New Plan will be nonqualified stock options (as noted above).

Specified Terms and Conditions. The documentation for each option grant will specify the vesting and any other terms and
conditions the Board chooses to include in such grants.

Expiration of Options. Each option granted under the New Plan will be exercisable starting on the date the option becomes vested and
ending on the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. A Grantee’s rights shall terminate for any option that has not become vested as
of the Grantee’s termination of service.

Non-Transferability of Options. Generally, options will not be transferrable, other than on the death of the Grantee.

Stock Grants

Each stock award will be documented in a grant agreement. This will set out the terms of the stock award, including the number of
shares, any applicable vesting schedule and related forfeiture provisions, the purchase price (if any) required to be paid by the grantee,
and other discretionary provisions that the Board determines are appropriate.

Change of Control

In the event there is a Change of Control of the Company, grants under the New Plan would become immediately vested (and
exercisable, in the case of options).

Consistent with the 2015 Plan, the 2022 Plan defines Change of Control as follows:

1. The accumulation by an unrelated person of beneficial ownership of more than 25% of the Company’s stock; or

2. The sale, or agreement to sell, all or substantially all the Company’s assets to an unrelated person, in a merger or otherwise; or
3. Achange in control within the meaning of the SEC rules (control means “the possession, direct or indirect, of the power to direct
or cause the direction of the management and policies of a person, whether through ownership of voting securities, by contract, or
otherwise”).

Tax Treatment of Stock Options Granted under the New Plan

A Grantee will not recognize taxable income at the time of grant, but will have to recognize taxable income equal to the excess of the
fair market value of the shares acquired over the exercise price paid for the shares as of the date of exercise.

Tax Treatment of Stock Awards Granted under the New Plan

Equity-based awards consist of shares of Common Stock that are transferred to the Grantee that may be subject to restrictions and
risks of forfeiture or may be granted as unrestricted stock. Generally, the value of the stock award is taxable as of the date of grant, if
the grant is not subject to any restrictions, and will, if there are substantial restrictions, become taxable to the Grantee when the
restrictions and risk of forfeiture lapse. The amount of income is the value of the shares in excess of the purchase price (if any) paid
for them.

If an equity-based award is made with substantial restrictions, the general tax rule described above will not apply if the Grantee files
an election under Internal Revenue Code Section 83(b) to recognize the fair market value of the Award, determined as of the date
granted, without taking into account the restrictions on such stock. Such an election is required to be made no later than 30 days after
the shares are transferred to the Grantee. If an 83(b) election is made, the Grantee will not have any additional income when the
shares vest, even if they are worth more at that time. If the Grantee makes this election and later forfeits shares, there is no deduction
permitted, so an election under Code Section 83(b) may represent a tax risk to the Grantee (i.e., paying tax on shares that never
become vested).
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Tax Reporting and Withholding by the Company

Grantees compensation is generally reported annually on IRS Form 1099-MISC or IRS Form W-2, depending on the Grantee’s
employment classification.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE “FOR” PROPOSAL 3
APPROVING THE CORECARD CORPORATION 2022 EMPLOYEE STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN.

CODE OF ETHICS
The company has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to all directors, officers, and employees. The Code of Ethics is posted on our

website at www.corecard.com. The company discloses on its website, within the time required by the rules of the SEC, any waivers
of, or amendments to, the Code of Ethics for the benefit of an executive officer.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC (“Nichols Cauley”) acted as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. We expect that representatives of Nichols Cauley will be present at the Annual Meeting.
They will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and to respond to appropriate questions. The Audit
Committee has selected Nichols Cauley for the audit for the fiscal year 2022. The following is a summary of fees and expenses
billed to the company by Nichols Cauley for services during 2021 and 2020:

Audit Fees - We were billed aggregate fees of $106,500 and $105,000 for review and audit services by Nichols Cauley in
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

All Other Fees - We were billed fees of $140,000 and $242,000 in other fees by Nichols Cauley in the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Such fees were for independent attestation services associated with service auditor SOC
reports for processing services.

Itis the policy of the Audit Committee to approve in advance, either verbally or in writing, all audit services and permitted non-audit
services provided to the company by the independent accountants. All such services were pre-approved by the Audit Committee
in the two years ended December 31, 2021.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The lease on our headquarters and primary facility at One Meca Way, Norcross, Georgia is held by ISC Properties, LLC, an entity
controlled by our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, J. Leland Strange. Mr. Strange holds a 100% ownership interest in ISC
Properties, LLC. In the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, we paid $265,000 and $214,000, respectively, in rent to ISC
Properties, LLC, which the company believes to be market rate.

SHAREHOLDERS’ PROPOSALS FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING IN 2023

Shareholders who wish to submit a proposal for inclusion in our proxy statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Shareholders
must submit such proposals so that they are received by the company no later than December 12, 2022. Such proposals must
comply with Exchange Act Rule 14a-8 and all other applicable proxy rules and requirements contained in our Bylaws relating to
shareholder proposals to be included in our proxy materials. Shareholders intending to present proposals at the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders in 2023 but who do not wish to submit the proposal for inclusion in our proxy statement pursuant to Rule 14a-8 should
submit these proposals to the Secretary of the company by certified mail, return receipt requested, at our offices in Norcross, Georgia
on or before December 15, 2022. Our bylaws contain an advance notice provision that states that, among other things, in order for
business to be brought properly before an annual meeting of shareholders by a shareholder, the shareholder must have given timely
notice of the business in writing to the Secretary of the company. To be timely under the Bylaws, a shareholder's notice must be
received at our principal offices by December 15, 2022.
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OTHER MATTERS WHICH MAY COME BEFORE THE MEETING

The Board is not aware of any matter other than those stated above that are to be brought before the meeting. However, if any other
matter should be presented for consideration and voting, the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy intend to vote the proxy in
accordance with their judgment of what is in the best interest of the company.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Any record or beneficial owner of our common stock as of April 4, 2022 may request a copy of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, including
financial statements, schedules and exhibits. Shareholders may also view and download a free copy of our Annual Report
on Form 10-K from our web site at www.corecard.com. Any request for the Form 10-K should be in writing addressed to:
Matthew A. White, CoreCard Corporation, One Meca Way, Norcross, Georgia 30093. We will provide copies of any exhibits
to the Form 10-K upon request and upon the payment of our reasonable expenses in furnishing such exhibits.

IMPORTANT NOTICE CONCERNING THE AVAILABLITY OF PROXY MATERIALS

This Proxy Statement and our Annual Report to Shareholders are available at https://materials.proxyvote.com/45816D
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Appendix A

CORECARD CORPORATION
2022 EMPLOYEE STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

1. Purpose and Stockholder Approval.

(a) CoreCard Corporation, a Georgia corporation (the “Company”), hereby adopts the CoreCard
Corporation 2022 Employee Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), effective as of May 26, 2022. The Plan is intended to recognize the
contributions made to the Company and its Affiliates by its employees, consultants and advisors of the Company, to provide such
persons with additional incentive to devote themselves to the future success of the Company, to improve the ability of the Company
to attract, retain, and motivate individuals upon whom the Company’s sustained growth and financial success depend, by providing
such persons with an opportunity to acquire or increase their proprietary interest in the Company. To this end, the Plan provides
for the grant of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units and dividend equivalent rights. Any
of these awards may, but need not, be made as performance incentives to reward attainment of annual or long-term performance
goals at the Committee’s sole and absolute discretion. Stock options granted under the Plan may be non-qualified stock options
or incentive stock options, as provided herein, except that stock options granted to any person who is not an employee of the
Company shall in all cases be non-qualified stock options.

(b) The adoption the Plan is contingent on and subject to its approval by the Company’s stockholders at
the Company’s stockholders meeting scheduled for May 26, 2022. No grants or awards shall be made under the Plan if the Plan
is not so approved.

2. Definitions. Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, the following terms shall have the following
meanings:

(a) “Affiliate” means a corporation that is a parent corporation or a subsidiary corporation with respect
to the Company within the meaning of Section 424(e) or (f) of the Code, and any other non-corporate entity that would be such a
subsidiary corporation if such entity were a corporation.

(b) “Award” means an award of Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Stock Options, Stock
Appreciation Rights or Dividend Equivalent Rights granted under the Plan, designated by the Committee at the time of such grant
as an Award, and containing the terms specified herein for Awards.

(c) “Award Document” means the document that sets forth the terms and conditions of each grant of an
Award. Awards shall be evidenced by an Award Document in such form as the Committee shall from time to time approve, which
Award Document shall comply with and be subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and such other terms and conditions as
the Committee shall from time to time require that are not inconsistent with the terms of the Plan. A Grantee shall not have any
rights with respect to an Award until and unless such Grantee shall have executed an Award Document containing the terms and
conditions determined by the Committee.

(d) “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

(e) “Cause” shall have the same definition as under any employment agreement between the Company
or any Affiliate and the Grantee or, if no such employment agreement exists or if such employment agreement does not contain
any such definition or words of similar import, “Cause” means, except as otherwise provided in an Award Document, that an
employee-Grantee should be or was dismissed as a result of

(i) any material breach by the Grantee of any agreement to which the Grantee and the
Company or an Affiliate are parties,
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(i) any act (other than retirement) or omission to act by the Grantee, including without
limitation, the commission of any crime (other than ordinary traffic violations) that may have a material and adverse effect on the
business of the Company or any Affiliate or on the Grantee’s ability to perform services for the Company or any Affiliate, or

(iii) any material misconduct or neglect of duties by the Grantee in connection with the
business or affairs of the Company or any Affiliate.

(f “Change in Control” means, except as otherwise provided in the Award Document, the first to occur
of any of the following events:

(i) The accumulation by an unrelated person of beneficial ownership of more than 25% of the
Company’s stock; or

(i) The sale, or agreement to sell, all or substantially all of the Company’s assets to an
unrelated person, in a merger or otherwise; or

(iii) A change in control within the meaning of the SEC rules (control means “the possession,
direct or indirect, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a person, whether through
ownership of voting securities, by contract, or otherwise”).

(9) “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
(h) “Commission” means the Securities and Exchange Commission or any successor agency.
(i) “Committee” means a committee of at least two directors of the Company appointed from time to

time by the Board, having the duties and authority set forth herein in addition to any other authority granted by the Board; provided,
however, that with respect to any Awards granted to an individual who is also a Section 16 Insider, the Committee shall consist of
either the entire Board or a committee of at least two directors who are Non-Employee Directors, and all authority and discretion
shall be exercised by such Non-Employee Directors, and references herein to the “Committee” means such Non-Employee
Directors insofar as any actions or determinations of the Committee shall relate to or affect Awards made to or held by any Section
16 Insider. At any time that the Board shall not have appointed a committee that meets the above requirements, any reference
herein to the Committee shall refer to the Board. In addition, and notwithstanding anything in this Section 2(i) to the contrary, the
Board may establish a separate committee to administer the Plan with respect to separate classes of Grantees (other than officers
of the Company who are subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act).

() “Common Stock” means the Common Stock of the Company.
(k) “Disability” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 22(e)(3) of the Code.
() “Dividend Equivalent Right” means a right, granted to a Grantee under the terms of the Plan, to

receive cash, Stock, other Awards or other property equal in value to dividends paid with respect to a specified number of shares
of Stock, or other periodic payments.

(m) “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and all rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder. Reference to a specific section of the Exchange Act or regulation thereunder shall include
such section or regulation, any valid regulation or interpretation promulgated under such section, and any comparable provision of
any future legislation or regulation amending, supplementing or superseding such section or regulation.

(n) “Fair Market Value” means, as of any given date, the value of the Common Stock as determined
below. If the Common Stock is listed on an established stock exchange or a national market system (including, without limitation,
the NYSE MKT), the Fair Market Value shall be the closing price of a share of Common Stock (or if no sales were reported, the
closing price on the date immediately preceding such date) as quoted on such exchange or system on the day of determination.
In the absence of an established market for the Common Stock, the Fair Market Value shall be determined in good faith by the
Committee and such determination shall be conclusive and binding on all parties. In making such a determination, the committee
shall consider the valuation methods stated in the regulations to Section 409A of the Code.
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(0) “Grant Date” means the date established by the Committee as of which any Award has been granted
to a Grantee and which, as to Options, the date deemed to be the date of grant for purposes of the Code and the determination of
the Fair Market Value of the underlying shares as required under the tax regulations related to ISOs and for purposes of Non-
Qualified Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights being treated as exempt from Code Section 409A.

(p) “Grantee” means any person who is granted an Award.

() “ISO” means an Option granted under the Plan that is intended to qualify as an “incentive stock
option” within the meaning of Section 422(b) of the Code.

(n “Non-Qualified Stock Option” means an Option granted under the Plan that is not intended to qualify,
or otherwise does not qualify, as an “incentive stock option” within the meaning of Section 422(b) of the Code.

(s) “Option” or “Stock Option” means either an ISO or a Non-Qualified Stock Option granted under the
Plan.

(t “Option Price” means the price at which Shares may be purchased upon exercise of an Option, as
calculated pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Plan.

(u) “Restricted Stock” means Shares issued to a person pursuant to an Award.
(v) “Rule 16b-3" means Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Act or any successor Rule.
(w) “Restricted Stock Unit” or “RSU” means a bookkeeping entry representing the equivalent of one (1)

share of Common Stock awarded to a Grantee under Section 8 of the Plan.

(x) “Shares” means the shares of Common Stock that are the subject of Awards.
(y) “Stock Appreciation Rights” or “SAR” means a right granted to a grantee under Section 7 of the Plan.
(2 “Termination of Employment or Service in Connection with a Change in Control” shall be deemed to

occur with respect to a Grantee if, within the one-year period (or such longer period as may be specified in an Award Document)
beginning on the date of a Change in Control, the employment or service of the Grantee shall be terminated either (i) involuntarily
for any reason other than for Cause or (i) in the case of a non-employee member of the Board, a required resignation from the
Board.

3. Administration of the Plan.

(a) Committee. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan
to the contrary, the Board may establish more than one committee to administer the Plan with respect to separate classes of
Grantees (other than officers of the Company who are subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act), and, provided further, that the
Board, itself, shall act as the Committee with respect to Awards made to non-employee members of the Board.

(b) Grants. The Committee shall from time to time at its discretion direct the Company to grant Awards
pursuant to the terms of the Plan. The Committee shall have plenary authority to (i) determine the Grantees to whom and the times
at which Awards shall be granted, (ii) determine the price at which Options shall be granted, (iii) determine the type of Option to be
granted and the number of Shares subject thereto, (iv) determine the number of Shares to be granted pursuant to each Award and
(v) approve the form and terms and conditions of the Award Documents and of each Award; all subject, however, to the express
provisions of the Plan, including, specifically, Section 10 regarding grants of Awards to non-employee members of the Board. In
making such determinations, the Committee may take into account the nature of the Grantee’s services and responsibilities, the
Grantee’s present and potential contribution to the Company’s success and such other factors as it may deem relevant. The
interpretation and construction by the Committee of any provisions of the Plan or of any Award granted under it shall be final,
binding and conclusive.
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() Exculpation. No member of the Committee shall be personally liable for monetary damages as such
for any action taken or any failure to take any action in connection with the administration of the Plan or the granting of Awards
thereunder except to the extent such exculpation is prohibited by provisions of the applicable business corporations law; provided,
however, that the provisions of this Section 3(c) shall not apply to the responsibility or liability of a member of the Committee
pursuant to any criminal statute or to the liability of a member of the Committee for the payment of taxes pursuant to local, state or
federal law.

(d) Indemnification. Service on the Committee shall constitute service as a member of the Board. Each
member of the Committee shall be entitled without further act on his or her part to indemnity from the Company to the fullest extent
provided by applicable law and the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation and/or Bylaws in connection with or arising out of any
action, suit or proceeding with respect to the administration of the Plan or the granting of Options or Awards thereunder in which
he or she may be involved by reason of his or her being or having been a member of the Committee, whether or not he or she
continues to be such member of the Committee at the time of the action, suit or proceeding.

4, Eligibility. All employees (including employees who are members of the Board or its Affiliates), consultants and
advisors of the Company or its Affiliates shall be eligible to receive Awards hereunder; provided, that only employees of the
Company or its Affiliates shall be eligible to receive 1SOs. The Committee, in its sole discretion, shall determine whether an
individual qualifies as an employee of the Company or its Affiliates.

5. Term of the Plan. No Award may be granted under the Plan after May 25, 2032.

6. Stock Options and Terms. Each Option granted under the Plan shall be a Non-Qualified Stock Option unless
the Option shall be specifically designated at the time of grant to be an ISO. Options granted pursuant to the Plan shall be evidenced
by the Award Documents in such form as the Committee shall from time to time approve, which Award Documents shall comply
with and be subject to the following terms and conditions and such other terms and conditions as the Committee shall from time to
time require that are not inconsistent with the terms of the Plan.

(a) Number of Shares. Each Award Document shall state the number of Shares to which it pertains. A
Grantee may receive more than one Option, which may include Options that are intended to be 1SOs and Options that are not
intended to be ISOs, but only on the terms and subject to the conditions and restrictions of the Plan.

(b) Option Price. Each Award Document shall state the Option Price that shall be at least 100% of the
Fair Market Value of the Shares at the time the Option is granted as determined by the Committee in accordance with this
Section 6(b); provided, however, that if an ISO is granted to a Grantee who then owns, directly or by attribution under
Section 424(d) of the Code, shares of capital stock of the Company possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power
of all classes of stock of the Company or an Affiliate, then the Option Price shall be at least 110% of the Fair Market Value of the
Shares at the time the Option is granted.

(c) Exercise. No Option shall be deemed to have been exercised prior to the receipt by the Company of
written notice of such exercise and of payment in full of the Option Price for the Shares to be purchased. Each such notice shall
specify the number of Shares to be purchased and shall (unless the Shares are covered by a then effective registration statement
or a Notification under Regulation A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act’)), contain the Grantee’'s
acknowledgment in form and substance satisfactory to the Company that (i) such Shares are being purchased for investment and
not for distribution or resale (other than a distribution or resale that, in the opinion of counsel satisfactory to the Company, may be
made without violating the registration provisions of the Act), (i) the Grantee has been advised and understands that (A) the Shares
have not been registered under the Act and are “restricted securities” within the meaning of Rule 144 under the Act and are subject
to restrictions on transfer and (B) the Company is under no obligation to register the Shares under the Act or to take any action
that would make available to the Grantee any exemption from such registration, (iii) such Shares may not be transferred without
compliance with all applicable federal and state securities laws, and (iv) an appropriate legend referring to the foregoing restrictions
on transfer and any other restrictions imposed under the Award Documents may be endorsed on the certificates. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, if the Company determines that issuance of Shares should be delayed pending (I) registration under federal or state
securities laws, (Il) the receipt of an opinion that an appropriate exemption from such registration is available, (Ill) the listing or
inclusion of the Shares on any securities exchange or in an automated quotation system or (IV) the consent or approval of any
governmental regulatory body whose consent or approval is necessary in connection with the issuance of such Shares, the
Company may defer exercise of any Option granted hereunder until any of the events described in this Section 6(c) has occurred.
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(d) No Stockholder Rights Prior to Exercise. No Grantee shall, solely by reason of having been granted
one or more Options, have any rights as a stockholder of the Company and shall have no right to vote Shares subject to the Option,
nor any right to receive any dividends declared or paid with respect to such Shares unless and until the Grantee has exercised his
or her Option and acquired such Shares.

(e) Medium of Payment. A Grantee shall pay for Shares (i) in cash, (ii) by certified check payable to the
order of the Company, or (iii) by such other mode of payment as the Committee may approve, including, without limitation, payment
through a broker in accordance with procedures permitted by Regulation T of the Federal Reserve Board. Furthermore, the
Committee may provide in an Award Document that payment may be made in whole or in part in shares of Common Stock held
by the Grantee. If payment is made in whole or in part in shares of Common Stock, then the Grantee shall deliver to the Company
certificates registered in the name of such Grantee representing the shares of Common Stock owned by such Grantee, free of all
liens, claims and encumbrances of every kind and having an aggregate Fair Market Value on the date of delivery that is at least
as great as the Option Price of the Shares (or relevant portion thereof) with respect to which such Option is to be exercised by the
payment in shares of Common Stock, accompanied by stock powers duly endorsed in blank by the Grantee. A Grantee may also
pay for Shares by delivery of Shares to be acquired upon the exercise of such Option, with such Shares being valued at the Fair
Market Value on the date of exercise. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may impose from time to time such limitations
and prohibitions on the use of shares of Common Stock to exercise an Option as it deems appropriate.

4] Termination of Options.
(i) No Option shall be exercisable after the first to occur of the following:
W) Expiration of the Option term specified in the Award Document, which shall not

exceed (i) ten years from the Grant Date, or (i) five years from the Grant Date of an ISO if the Grantee on the Grant Date owns,
directly or by attribution under Section 424(d) of the Code, shares of capital stock of the Company possessing more than ten
percent (10%) of the total combined voting power of all classes of capital stock of the Company or of an Affiliate;

2) Except as otherwise provided in the Award Document, expiration of ninety
(90) days from the date the Grantee’s employment or service with the Company or its Affiliate terminates for any reason other than
Disability or death or as otherwise specified in this Section 6 or Section 13 below;

(3) Except as otherwise provided in the Award Document, expiration of one year
from the date the Grantee’s employment or service with the Company or its Affiliate terminates due to the Grantee’s Disability or
death;

(4) The date on which the employment or service of the Grantee shall be terminated
for Cause. In such event, in addition to immediate termination of the Option, the Grantee shall automatically forfeit all Shares for
which the Company has not yet delivered the share certificates upon refund by the Company of the Option Price of such Shares; or

(5) The date, if any, set by the Board as an accelerated expiration date pursuant to
Section 12 hereof.

(i) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may extend the period during which an
Option may be exercised to a date no later than the date of the expiration of the Option term specified in the Award Documents,
as they may be amended, provided that any change pursuant to this Section 6(f)(ii) that would cause an ISO to become a Non-
Qualified Stock Option may be made only with the consent of the Grantee.

(iii) During the period in which an Option may be exercised after the termination of the
Grantee’s employment or service with the Company or any Affiliate, such Option shall only be exercisable to the extent it was
exercisable immediately prior to such Grantee’s termination of service or employment, except to the extent specifically provided to
the contrary in the applicable Award Document.

(9) Transfers. Except as provided in Section 23, no Option may be transferred except by will or by the

laws of descent and distribution. During the lifetime of the person to whom an Option is granted, such Option may be exercised
only by him or her except as provided in Section 23. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Non-Qualified Stock Option may be
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transferred pursuant to the terms of a “qualified domestic relations order” within the meaning of Sections 401(a)(13) and 414(p) of
the Code or within the meaning of Title | of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

(h) Exercisability. No Option may be exercised except to the extent the Option has become vested
pursuant to its terms.

(i) Limitation on ISO Grants. In no event shall the aggregate Fair Market Value of the Shares
(determined at the time the 1SO is granted) with respect to which an ISO is exercisable for the first time by the Grantee during any
calendar year (under all incentive stock option plans of the Company or its Affiliates) exceed $100,000 (determined as of the Grant
Date or Dates).

) Other Provisions. The Award Documents shall contain such other provisions including, without
limitation, provisions authorizing the Committee to accelerate the exercisability of all or any portion of an Option, additional
restrictions upon the exercise of the Option or additional limitations upon the term of the Option, as the Committee shall deem
advisable.

(k) Amendment. The Committee shall have the right to amend Award Documents issued to a Grantee,
subject to the Grantee’s consent if such amendment is not favorable to the Grantee, except that the consent of the Grantee shall
not be required for any amendment made under Section 13.

7. Stock Appreciation Rights.

(a) An SAR is an Award in the form of a right to receive cash or Common Stock, upon surrender of the
SAR, in an amount equal to the appreciation in the value of the Common Stock over a base price established in the Award. An
SAR shall confer on the Grantee to whom it is granted a right to receive, upon exercise thereof, the excess of (A) the Fair Market
Value of one share of Common Stock on the date of exercise over (B) the base price per share set forth in the applicable Award
Document. The base price per share specified in the applicable Award Document shall be at least the Fair Market Value of a share
of Common Stock on the Grant Date. SARs may as a separate Award, or may be granted in conjunction with all or part of an
Option granted under the Plan.

(b) The Committee shall determine at the Grant Date or thereafter, the time or times at which and the
circumstances under which an SAR may be exercised in whole or in part (including based on achievement of performance goals
and/or future service requirements), the time or times at which SARs shall cease to be or become exercisable following termination
of Service or upon other conditions, the method of exercise, method of settlement, form of consideration payable in settlement,
method by or forms in which Shares will be delivered or deemed to be delivered to Grantees, whether or not an SAR shall be in
tandem or as a separate grant and any other terms and conditions of any SAR.

(c) Each SAR granted under the Plan shall terminate, and all rights thereunder shall cease, upon the
expiration of not more than ten years from the date such SAR is granted, or under such circumstances and on such date prior
thereto as is set forth in the Plan or as may be fixed by the Committee and stated in the Award Document relating to such SAR.

(d) Holders of an SAR shall have no rights as stockholders of the Company solely by reason of having
granted one or more SARs. Holders of an SAR shall have no right to vote such Shares or the right to receive any dividends declared
or paid with respect to such Shares.

(e) A holder of an SAR shall have no rights other than those of a general creditor of the Company. An
SAR represents an unfunded and unsecured obligation of the Company, subject to the terms and conditions of the applicable
Award Document.

4] Unless the Committee otherwise provides in an Award Document, the following provisions shall apply
to SARs following the Grantee’s termination of employment with the Company:

(i) In the event that a Grantee’s employment with the Company terminates for any reason
other than the Grantee’s death or Disability, any SAR held by such Grantee shall, to the extent it was exercisable immediately prior
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to such termination of employment, be exercisable for ninety (90) days following such termination of employment and, if not
exercised during that ninety (90) day period, be forfeited immediately thereafter.

(i) Any portion of an SAR that was not exercisable immediately prior to any termination of
employment of the Grantee shall be immediately forfeited by the Grantee as of such termination of employment.

(iii) In the event a Grantee’s employment terminates by reason of the Grantee’s death or
Disability, any SAR of such Grantee shall, to the extent it was exercisable immediately prior to such termination of employment,
continue to be exercisable by the Grantee or the Grantee’s estate (as the case may be) for a period of one year following such
termination of employment, and, if not exercised during such one-year period, be forfeited immediately thereafter.

(iv) Upon forfeiture of an SAR, or any portion thereof, the Grantee shall have no further rights
with respect to such forfeited SAR of forfeited portion of the SAR, as the case may be.

(9) Except as provided in this Section 7, during the lifetime of a Grantee, only the Grantee (or, in the
event of legal incapacity or incompetency, the Grantee’s guardian or legal representative) may exercise an SAR. Except as
provided in this Section 7 or Section 23, no SAR shall be assignable or transferable by the Grantee to whom it is granted, other
than by will or the laws of descent and distribution.

8. Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units.

(a) Restricted Stock is an Award of shares of Common Stock that is granted subject to the satisfaction
of such conditions and restrictions as the Committee may determine. In lieu of, or in addition to any Awards of Restricted Stock,
the Committee may grant Restricted Stock Units to any Grantee subject to the same conditions and restrictions as the Committee
would have imposed in connection with any Award of Restricted Stock. Each Restricted Stock Unit shall have a value equal to the
fair market value of one share of Common Stock. Each Award Document shall state the number of shares of Restricted Stock or
Restricted Stock Units to which it pertains. No cash or other consideration shall be required to be paid by a Grantee for an Award.

(b) At the time a grant of Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units is made, the Committee may, in its
sole discretion, establish a period of time (a “restricted period”) applicable to such Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units. Each
Award of Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units may be subject to a different restricted period. The Committee may, in its sole
discretion, at the time a grant of Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units is made, prescribe restrictions in addition to or other
than the expiration of the restricted period, including the satisfaction of corporate or individual performance objectives, which may
be applicable to all or any portion of the Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units. Except as provided in Section 23, neither
Restricted Stock nor Restricted Stock Units may be sold, transferred, assigned, pledged or otherwise encumbered or disposed of
during the restricted period or prior to the satisfaction of any other restrictions prescribed by the Committee with respect to such
Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units.

(c) The Company shall issue, in the name of each Grantee to whom Restricted Stock has been granted,
stock certificates representing the total number of shares of Restricted Stock granted to the Grantee, as soon as reasonably
practicable after the Grant Date. The Committee may provide in an Award Document that either (i) the Secretary of the Company
shall hold such certificates for the Grantee’s benefit until such time as the Restricted Stock is forfeited to the Company or the
restrictions lapse, or (i) such certificates shall be delivered to the Grantee, provided, however, that such certificates shall bear a
legend or legends that comply with the applicable securities laws and regulations and makes appropriate reference to the
restrictions imposed under the Plan and the Award Document.

(d) Unless the Committee otherwise provides in an Award Document, holders of Restricted Stock shall
have the right to vote such Shares. Under no circumstances shall the holder of Restricted Stock be entitled to receive any dividends
declared or paid with respect to such Shares until such time as the Restricted Stock becomes vested. The Committee may provide
that any dividends paid on Restricted Stock must be reinvested in shares of Common Stock, which shall then be subject to the
same vesting conditions and restrictions applicable to such Restricted Stock. All distributions, if any, received by a Grantee with
respect to Restricted Stock as a result of any stock split, stock dividend, combination of shares, or other similar transaction shall
be subject to the restrictions applicable to the original Grant.
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(e) Holders of Restricted Stock Units shall have no rights as stockholders of the Company. The
Committee may provide in an Award Document evidencing a grant of Restricted Stock Units that the holder of such Restricted
Stock Units shall be entitled to receive, upon the Company’s payment of a cash dividend on its outstanding Common Stock, a cash
payment for each Restricted Stock Unit held equal to the per-share dividend paid on the Common Stock; provided, however, that
such cash dividend shall not be distributed to the holder of such Restricted Stock Units until the Restricted Stock Units become
vested. The Award Document may also provide that such cash payment will be deemed reinvested in additional Restricted Stock
Units at a price per unit equal to the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the date that such dividend is paid, but
such additional Restricted Stock Units shall in all cases be subject to the same restrictions that apply to the original Restricted
Stock Units.

(f A holder of Restricted Stock Units shall have no rights other than those of a general creditor of the
Company. Restricted Stock Units represent an unfunded and unsecured obligation of the Company, subject to the terms and
conditions of the applicable Award Document.

(9) Unless the Committee otherwise provides in an Award Document, in the event that a Grantee’s
employment with the Company terminates for any reason other than death or Disability, any Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock
Units held by such Grantee shall be forfeited by the Grantee and reacquired by the Company without any obligation to pay any
amount for such Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units. Unless otherwise provided in the Award Document, in the event that
a Grantee’s employment terminates as a result of the Grantee’s death or Disability, all remaining restrictions with respect to such
Grantee’s Restricted Stock shall immediately lapse. Upon forfeiture of Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units, the Grantee
shall have no further rights with respect to such Award, including but not limited to any right to vote Restricted Stock or any right
to receive dividends with respect to shares of Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units.

(h) Upon the expiration or termination of any restricted period and the satisfaction of any other conditions
prescribed by the Committee, the restrictions applicable to shares of Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units shall lapse, and,
unless otherwise provided in the Award Document, a stock certificate for such shares shall be delivered, free of all such restrictions,
to the Grantee or the Grantee’s beneficiary or estate, as the case may be; provided, however, that Restricted Stock Units may
provide for settlement in cash rather than in stock, in which case a cash payment equal to the value of the vested Restricted Stock
Units will be made to the Grantee or the Grantee’s beneficiary or estate, as the case may be. The restrictions upon such Restricted
Stock or Restricted Stock Units shall lapse only if the Grantee on the date such lapse is to occur is, and has continuously been an
employee of the Company or an Affiliate or has been providing services as a consultant or advisor to the Company or an Affiliate,
continuously from the date such Award was granted. Neither the Grantee, nor the Grantee’s beneficiary or estate, shall have any
further rights with regard to a Restricted Stock Unit once the share of Stock represented by the Restricted Stock Unit or cash
payment equivalent has been delivered. Except to the extent otherwise provide din an Award Document, the of delivery of stock,
or the cash payment to settle each Restricted Stock Unit shall be made as soon as practicable following the date restrictions on
such Restricted Stock Unit lapse.

(i) Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units are intended to be subject to a substantial risk of
forfeiture during the restricted period, and, in the case of Restricted Stock (but not Restricted Stock Units) subject to federal income
tax in accordance with section 83 of the Code. Section 83 generally provides that Grantee will recognize compensation income
with respect to each installment of the Restricted Stock on the Vesting Date in an amount equal to the then Fair Market Value of
the shares for which restrictions have lapsed. Alternatively, Grantee may elect, pursuant to Section 83(b) of the Code, to recognize
compensation income for all or any part of the Restricted Stock (but not with respect to a Restricted Stock Unit) at the Grant Date
in an amount equal to the fair market value of the Restricted Stock subject to the election on the Grant Date. Such election must
be made within 30 days of the Grant Date and Grantee shall immediately notify the Company if such an election is made.

9. Dividend Equivalent Rights. A Dividend Equivalent Right is an Award entitling the Grantee to receive credits
based on cash distributions that would have been paid on the shares of Common Stock subject to an equity-based Award granted
to such Grantee, determined as though such shares had been issued to and held by the Grantee. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
no Dividend Equivalent Right may be granted hereunder to any Grantee in connection with a Stock Option or SAR granted to such
Grantee. The terms and conditions of Dividend Equivalent Rights shall be specified in the Award Document. Dividend equivalents
credited to the holder of a Dividend Equivalent Right may be deemed reinvested in additional shares of Common Stock, which may
thereafter accrue additional equivalents, or may be treated as a cumulative right to the cash amount of such dividends. Any
reinvestment of deemed dividends in shares of Common Stock shall be at Fair Market Value on the date of the deemed dividend
distribution. Dividend Equivalent Rights may be settled in cash or Common Stock or a combination thereof, and shall be paid or
distributed in a single payment or distribution on (or as soon as practicable following) the date the underlying Award has vested
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(taking into account the extent of such vesting) and any such Dividend Equivalent Right shall expire or be forfeited or annulled
under the same conditions and to the same extent as the underlying Award to which the Dividend Equivalent Right is related
expires or is forfeited. Except as may otherwise be provided by the Committee in the Award Document, a Grantee’s rights in all
Dividend Equivalent Rights or interest equivalents shall automatically terminate upon the Grantee’s termination of Service for any
reason.

10. Limitations on Awards.

(a) Shares Subject to Plan. The aggregate maximum number of Shares for which Awards may be
granted pursuant to the Plan is seven hundred fifty thousand (750,000) adjusted as provided in Section 12, all of which may be
granted as 1SOs.

(i) The Shares shall be issued from authorized and unissued Common Stock or Common
Stock held in or hereafter acquired for the treasury of the Company.

(i) Shares covered by an Award shall be counted against the limit set forth in this Section
10(a). If any Shares covered by an Award granted under the Plan are not purchased or are forfeited or expire, or if an Award
otherwise terminates without delivery of any Common Stock subject thereto, then the number of Shares counted against the
aggregate number of Shares available under the Plan with respect to such Award shall, to the extent of any such forfeiture,
termination, cash-settlement or expiration, again be available for the grant of Awards under the Plan in the same amount as such
Shares were counted against the limit set forth in this section.

(iii) If an Option or an SAR terminates or expires without having been fully exercised for any
reason, or is canceled or forfeited or cash-settled pursuant to the terms of an Award, the Shares for which the Option or SAR was
not exercised may again be the subject of an Award granted pursuant to the Plan. To the extent Shares subject to an Option or
stock-settled SAR are withheld by the Company for payment of purchase price or as a means of paying the exercise price, or for
payment of federal, state or local income or wage tax withholding requirements, the Shares that are so withheld shall be treated
as granted and shall not again be available for subsequent grants of Awards under the Plan.

(iv) If any full-value Award (i.e., an equity-based Award other than an Option or SAR) is
canceled or forfeited or cash-settled pursuant to the terms of an Award, the Shares for which such Award was canceled or forfeited
or cash-settled may again be subject of an Award granted pursuant to the Plan. To the extent Shares subject to a full-value Award
are not actually issued to the Grantee at the time the Award is exercised or settled, including where Shares are withheld for payment
of federal, state or local income or wage tax withholding, the Shares that are so withheld shall again be available for grants of
Awards under the Plan.

(b) No Repricing. Other than pursuant to Section 12, the Committee shall not without the approval of
the Company’s stockholders (a) lower the exercise price per Share of an Option or SAR after it is granted, (b) cancel an Option or
SAR when the exercise price per Share exceeds the Fair Market Value of one Share in exchange for cash or another Award (other
than in connection with a Change in Control), or (c) take any other action with respect to an Option or SAR that would be treated
as a repricing under the rules and regulations of the principal U.S. national securities exchange on which the Shares are listed.
The foregoing limitations on modifications of SARs and Options shall not be applicable to changes the Committee determines to
be necessary in order to achieve compliance with applicable law, including Internal Revenue Code Section 409A.

1. Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control, the Committee may take whatever action with respect
to Awards outstanding as it deems necessary or desirable, including, without limitation, accelerating the expiration or termination
date or the date of exercisability in any Award Documents, settling any Award by means of a cash payment (including a cash
payment equal to the amount paid per share of Common Stock in such Change in Control less, in the case of Options, the Option
Price) or removing any restrictions from or imposing any additional restrictions on any outstanding Awards. Except to the extent
otherwise provided in an Award Document, the following provisions shall apply in the event of a Change in Control:

(@) Accelerated Vesting. All Awards outstanding as of the date there is a Change in Control shall be fully
vested with respect to any Grantee who is employed as of the date of such Change in Control, or whose termination of employment
occurred in connection with such Change in Control.
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(b) Awards Assumed or Substituted by Surviving Entity. Awards assumed by an entity that is the surviving or
successor entity following a Change in Control (the “Surviving Entity”) or are otherwise equitably converted or substituted in
connection with a Change in Control shall have the same terms and conditions, except any such Awards shall be fully vested as
of the Change in Control.

(c) Awards not Assumed or Substituted by Surviving Entity. Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control, all
outstanding Awards not assumed or substituted by the successor entity shall be settled by means of a delivery equity or payment
in cash equal to the value of all such Awards within sixty (60) days following the Change in Control.

12. Adjustments on Changes in Capitalization. The aggregate number of Shares and class of Shares as to which
Awards may be granted hereunder, the limitation as to grants to individuals otherwise provided for in the Plan, the number of
Shares covered by each outstanding Award and the Option Price for each related outstanding Option and SAR, shall be
appropriately adjusted in the event of a stock dividend, extraordinary cash dividend, stock split, recapitalization or other change in
the number or class of issued and outstanding equity securities of the Company resulting from a subdivision or consolidation of
the Common Stock and/or, if appropriate, other outstanding equity securities or a recapitalization or other capital adjustment (not
including the issuance of Common Stock on the conversion of other securities of the Company that are convertible into Common
Stock) affecting the Common Stock which is effected without receipt of consideration by the Company. The Committee shall have
authority to determine the adjustments to be made under this Section, and any such determination by the Committee shall be final,
binding and conclusive; provided, however, that no adjustment shall be made that will cause an ISO to lose its status as such
without the consent of the Grantee.

13. Substitute Awards. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the Committee may grant Awards
under the Plan in substitution for stock and stock-based awards held by employees of another entity who become employees of
the Company or an Affiliate as a result of a merger or consolidation of the former employing entity with the Company or an Affiliate
or the acquisition by the Company or an Affiliate of property or stock of the former employing corporation. The Committee may
direct that the substitute awards be made on such terms and conditions as the Committee considers appropriate in the
circumstances.

14, Amendment of the Plan. The Board may amend the Plan from time to time in such manner as it may deem
advisable; provided that, without obtaining stockholder approval, the Board may not: (i) increase the maximum number of Shares
as to which Awards may be granted, except for adjustments pursuant to Section 12, (i) materially expand the eligible participants
or (iii) otherwise adopt any amendment constituting a change requiring stockholder approval under applicable laws or applicable
listing requirements of any exchange on which the Company’s securities are listed. No amendment to the Plan shall adversely
materially affect any outstanding Award, however, without the consent of the Grantee.

15. No Commitment to Retain. The grant of an Award shall not be construed to imply or to constitute evidence of
any agreement, express or implied, on the part of the Company or any Affiliate to retain the Grantee in the employ of the Company
or an Affiliate and/or as a member of the Company’s Board or in any other capacity.

16. Withholding of Taxes. Whenever the Company proposes or is required to deliver or transfer Shares in
connection with an Award or the exercise of an Option, the Company shall have the right to (a) require the recipient to remit or
otherwise make available to the Company an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state and/or local withholding tax
requirements prior to the delivery or transfer of any certificate or certificates for such Shares or (b) take whatever other action it
deems necessary to protect its interests with respect to tax liabilities. The Company’s obligation to make any delivery or transfer
of Shares shall be conditioned on the Grantee’s compliance, to the Company’s satisfaction, with any withholding requirement. The
Grantee may elect to make payment for the withholding of federal, state and local taxes by one or a combination of the following
methods: (i) payment of an amount in cash equal to the amount to be withheld (including cash obtained through the sale of the
Shares acquired on exercise of an Option or SAR, upon the lapse of restrictions on Restricted Stocker, or upon the transfer of
Shares, through a broker-dealer to whom the Grantee has submitted irrevocable instructions to deliver promptly to the Company,
the amount to be withheld); (ii) delivering part or all of the amount to be withheld in the form of Shares valued at Fair Market Value;
(iii) requesting the Company to withhold from those Shares that would otherwise be received upon exercise of the Option or SAR,
upon the lapse of restrictions on Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Unit, or upon the transfer of Shares, a number of Shares
having a Fair Market Value; or (iv) withholding from any compensation otherwise due to the Grantee; provided, however, that any
method of satisfying the Grantee’s withholding liabilities other than payment by the Grantee from the Grantee’s own funds may be
limited or prohibited at the Committee’s sole and absolute discretion.
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17. Source of Shares; Fractional Shares. The Common Stock that may be issued (which term includes Common
Stock reissued or otherwise delivered) pursuant to an Award under the Plan shall be authorized but unissued Stock, treasury
shares, or shares that the Company has acquired through purchases in the market. No fractional shares of Stock shall be issued
under the Plan, and shares issued shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share (with any balance being settled in cash), but
fractional interests may be accumulated pursuant to the terms of an Award. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary,
the Company may satisfy its obligation to issue Shares hereunder by book-entry registration.

18. Deferred Arrangements. The Committee may permit or require the deferral of any award payment into a
deferred compensation arrangement, subject to such rules and procedures as it may establish, which may include provisions for
the payment or crediting of interest or Dividend Equivalents, including converting such credits into deferred Common Stock
equivalents. Any such deferrals shall be made in a manner that complies with Code Section 409A.

19. Parachute Limitations. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan or of any other agreement, contract,
or understanding heretofore or hereafter entered into by a Grantee with the Company or any Affiliate, except an agreement,
contract, or understanding that expressly addresses Section 280G or Section 4999 of the Code (an “Other Agreement”), and
notwithstanding any formal or informal plan or other arrangement for the direct or indirect provision of compensation to the Grantee
(including groups or classes of Grantees or beneficiaries of which the Grantee is a member), whether or not such compensation
is deferred, is in cash, or is in the form of a benefit to or for the Grantee (a “Benefit Arrangement’), if the Grantee is a “disqualified
individual,” as defined in Section 280G(c) of the Code, any Option, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Unit, Stock Appreciation
Right or Dividend Equivalent Right held by that Grantee and any right to receive any payment or other benefit under this Plan shall
not become exercisable or vested to the extent that such right to exercise, vesting, payment, or benefit, taking into account all
other rights, payments, or benefits to or for the Grantee under this Plan, all Other Agreements, and all Benefit Arrangements, would
cause any payment or benefit to the Grantee under this Plan to be subject to excise tax under Code Section 4999. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the Committee may provide in an Award Document that the foregoing limitations shall only be applicable to the
extent that the imposition of such limitation is, on a net after tax basis, beneficial to the Grantee. The Committee shall have the
authority to determine what restrictions and/or reductions in payments shall be made under this Section 19 in order to avoid the
detrimental tax consequences of Code Section 4999, and may use such authority to cause a reduction to payments or benefits
that would be made by reason of contracts, agreements or arrangements that are outside the scope of the Plan, to the extent such
a reduction would result in a greater, net after-tax benefit to the Grantee.

20. Section 409A. The Committee intends to comply with Section 409A of the Code (“Section 409A”) with regard
to any Awards hereunder that constitute nonqualified deferred compensation within the meaning of Section 409A, and otherwise
to provide Awards that are exempt from Section 409A.

21. Unfunded Status of Plan. The Plan shall be unfunded. Neither the Company, nor the Board nor the Committee
shall be required to segregate any assets that may at any time be represented by Awards made pursuant to the Plan. Neither the
Company, nor the Board, nor the Committee shall be deemed to be a trustee of any amounts to be paid or securities to be issued
under the Plan.

22. Compensation Recovery.

(a) In the event the Company is required to provide an accounting restatement for any of the prior three
fiscal years of the Company for which audited financial statements have been completed as a result of material noncompliance
with financial reporting requirements under federal securities laws (a “Restatement”), the amount of any Excess Compensation (as
defined below) realized by an any Executive Officer (as defined below) shall be subject to recovery by the Company.

(b) For purposes of this Section 22:

(i) An “Executive Officer” shall mean any officer of the Company who holds an office of
executive vice president or above; and

(i) “Excess Compensation” shall mean the excess of (i) the actual amount of cash-based or
equity-based incentive compensation received by an Executive Officer over (ii) the compensation that would have been received
based on the restated financial results during the three-year period preceding the date on which the Company is required to prepare
such restatement.
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(c) Recovery of Excess Compensation under this Section 22 shall not preclude the Company from
seeking relief under any other agreement, policy or law. The Company's recoupment rights under this Section 22 shall be in addition
to, and not in lieu of, actions that the Company may take to remedy or discipline any act of misconduct by an Executive Officer
including, but not limited to, termination of employment or initiation of appropriate legal action.

(d) The recovery of compensation under this Section 22 is separate from and in addition to the
compensation recovery requirements of Section 304 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that are applicable to the Company's Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, and the Committee shall reduce the recoupment under this Section 22 by any
amounts paid to the Company by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to such section.

23. Permitted Transfers. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, Awards (other than ISOs and
corresponding Awards), may be transferred, without consideration, to a Permitted Transferee. For this purpose, a “Permitted
Transferee” in respect of a Grantee means any member of the Immediate Family of such Grantee, any trust of which all of the
primary beneficiaries are such Grantee or members of his or her Inmediate Family, or any partnership (including limited liability
companies and similar entities) of which all of the partners or members are such Grantee or members of his or her Immediate
Family; and the “Immediate Family” of a Grantee means the Grantee’s spouse, any person sharing the Grantee’s household (other
than a tenant or employee), children, stepchildren, grandchildren, parents, stepparents, siblings, grandparents, nieces and
nephews. Such Award may be exercised by such Permitted Transferee in accordance with the terms of the Award Document. If
so determined by the Committee, a Grantee may, in the manner established by the Committee, designate a beneficiary or
beneficiaries to exercise the rights of the Grantee, and to receive any distribution with respect to any Award upon the death of the
Grantee. A transferee, beneficiary, guardian, legal representative or other person claiming any rights under the Plan from or through
any Grantee shall be subject to and consistent with the provisions of the Plan and any applicable Award Document, except to the
extent the Plan and Award Document otherwise provide with respect to such persons, and to any additional restrictions or
limitations deemed necessary or appropriate by the Committee.

24, Governing Law. The validity, performance, construction and effect of this Plan shall, except to the extent
preempted by federal law, be governed by the laws of the state of Georgia, without giving effect to principles of conflicts of law.
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Forward-Looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this Form 10-K may contain forward-looking statements relating to CoreCard
Corporation (“CoreCard”). All statements, trend analyses and other information contained in the following discussion
relative to markets for our products and trends in revenue, gross margins and anticipated expense levels, as well as
other statements including words such as “may”, “will’, “anticipate”, “believe”, “intend”, “plan’, “estimate”, “expect’,
“strategy” and “likely”, and other similar expressions constitute forward-looking statements. Prospective investors
and current shareholders are cautioned that any such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance and involve risks and uncertainties, and that actual results may differ materially from those
contemplated by such forward-looking statements. A number of the factors that we believe could impact our future
operations are discussed in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations in Item 7 of this Form 10-K. CoreCard undertakes no obligation to update or revise its forward-looking
statements to reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated events or changes in future operating

results except as required by law.

ITEM1.  BUSINESS

Overview

CoreCard Corporation, a Georgia corporation, and its predecessor companies have operated since 1973 and its securities have been
publicly traded since 1980. In this report, sometimes we use the terms “Company”, “us”, “ours”, “we”, “Registrant” and similar words to
refer to CoreCard Corporation and subsidiaries. Our executive offices are located in Norcross, Georgia and our website is

www.corecard.com.

On December 15, 2021, we changed our name to CoreCard Corporation from Intelligent Systems Corporation. Our corporate structure
did not change nor did our financial reporting. See our 8-K dated December 15, 2021, for more information. We are primarily engaged
in the business of providing technology solutions and processing services to the financial technology and services market, commonly
referred to as the FinTech industry. Our operations are conducted through our affiliate companies located in Romania, India, Dubai
and Colombia, as well as the corporate office in Norcross, Georgia which provides significant administrative, human resources and
executive management support. Corecard’s foreign subsidiaries are CoreCard SRL in Romania, CoreCard Software in India,
CoreCard Colombia SAS in Colombia and Corecard Software DMCC in Dubai, that perform software development and testing as well
as processing operations support.

For further information about trends and risks likely to impact our business, please refer to Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations in ltem 7 of this Form 10-K.

CoreCard designs, develops and markets a comprehensive suite of software solutions to program managers, accounts receivable
businesses, financial institutions, retailers and processors to manage their credit and debit cards, prepaid cards, private label cards,
fleet cards, buy now pay later programs, loyalty programs and accounts receivable and loan transactions. CoreCard utilizes the same
core software solution in its processing operations as it sells to licensees, although licensees typically request a variety of
customizations which may or may not deviate from the core software solution offering.

The CoreCard software solutions allow companies to offer any type of transacting account or card issuing program as well as
installment and revolving loans, to set up and maintain account data, to record advances and payments, to assess fees, interest and
other charges, to resolve disputes and chargebacks, to manage collections of accounts receivable, to generate reports and to seftle
transactions with financial institutions and network associations.



The CoreCard proprietary software applications are based on CoreCard's core financial transaction processing platform
(CoreENGINE™) and address the unique requirements of customers and program managers that issue or process:

e  Credit Cards/Loans - revolving or non-revolving credit issued to consumer or business accounts (with or without a physical card)
that typically involve interest, fees, settlement, collections, etc. Within this market, CoreCard offers software specifically tailored
to handle private label cards, network branded (i.e., MasterCard, VISA or Discover) bank cards, fleet cards, loans of any type, or
any other type of “system of record” accounts receivable.

e  Prepaid/Debit Cards — pre-loaded funds drawn down for purchase or cash withdrawal typically involving a variety of fees but no
interest. Numerous examples exist including gift cards, loyalty/reward cards, health benefit cards, payroll and benefits
disbursement, student aid disbursement, government assistance payments, corporate expense cards, transit cards and any other
type of “system of record” stored value accounts.

The CoreCard software solutions allow customers to optimize their card account management systems, improve customer retention,
lower operating costs and create greater market differentiation. The CoreCard solutions are feature-rich, have web interfaces including
a standard library of APIs and contain financial transaction processing solutions that allow customers to automate, streamline and
optimize business processes associated with the set-up, administration, management and settiement of credit, prepaid and loan
accounts, to process transactions, and to generate reports and statements for these accounts. In addition, because the CoreCard
products are designed to run on lower cost, scalable PC-based servers, rather than expensive legacy mainframe computers,
customers may benefit from lower overall costs since the solution provides scalability by adding additional servers as card volume
grows. The CoreCard product functionality includes embedded multi-lingual, multi-currency support, web-based interface, real-time
processing, complex rules-based authorizations, account hierarchies, documented APIs for easy integration to the backend
functionality and robust fee libraries. These features support customer-defined pricing and payment terms and allow CoreCard’s
customers to create new and innovative card programs to differentiate themselves in the marketplace and improve customer retention.

We believe CoreCard is unique among software companies because it offers a full array of card and account management software
solutions, available either for in-house license or outsourced processing by CoreCard’s processing business (“Processing Services”)
at the customer’s option. CoreCard also provides customers with a unique option to license the same CoreCard software that is used
in the CoreCard processing environment and transfer it in-house for customer-controlled processing at a later date.

e License — CoreCard sells a software license to a customer who then runs the CoreCard software system, configured for the
customer’s unique requirements, at a customer controlled location. It usually requires substantial additional resources from
CoreCard to customize or operate the licensed software. CoreCard is de-emphasizing the license option.

e  Processing Services — CoreCard offers processing services that allow customers to outsource their card processing requirements
to CoreCard. CoreCard manages all aspects of the processing functions using its proprietary software configured for each
processing customer.

We continue to add resources to expand upon our infrastructure investment to support CoreCard’s Processing Services line of
business. CoreCard processes prepaid cards and credit cards (private label and open loop/network) for a number of customers and
anticipates steadily growing this business further in 2022. CoreCard has multiple secure processing data centers at third party
locations, is certified as compliant with the Payment Card Industry (PCI) Data Security Standards and has an SOC 1 and SOC 2
independent audit report that can be relied on by its prepaid and credit processing customers. It has obtained certification from
Discover, MasterCard, Visa, Star and Pulse.

CoreCard added Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. as a customer in 2018, referred to as “Customer A” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, which represented 71% and 69% of our consolidated revenues for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively. We expect future professional services, maintenance, and license revenue from this customer in 2022 and future
years, however the amount and timing will be dependent on various factors not in our control such as the number of accounts on file
and the level of customization needed by the customer.

CoreCard has relationships with several financial institutions that are important for network certification, referrals for processing or
program managers, and sponsoring prospective card programs.

CoreCard has Program Manager capabilities in addition to processing services, which has allowed us to gain additional experience
and adding the potential for increased revenue, although we do not expect any significant revenue impact as a Program Manager in
the near term.



CoreCard’s principal target markets include consumer revolving credit portfolios, accounts receivable businesses, prepaid card
issuers, retail and private-label issuers (large and small), small third-party processors, and small, mid-size and large financial
institutions in the United States. CoreCard has customers in international markets as well. CoreCard competes with third-party card
processors that allow customers to outsource their account transaction processing rather than acquire software to manage their
transactions in-house. CoreCard competes with several larger and more established processors. Many of CoreCard’s competitors,
especially certain processors, have significantly more financial, marketing and development resources than CoreCard and have large,
established customer bases often tied to long-term contracts. CoreCard believes it can compete successfully in its selected markets
by providing to its licensed software customers and processing customers a robust technology platform, greater system flexibility and
more customer-driven marketing options. Additionally, the size and flexibility of CoreCard makes it possible to get to market more
quickly with customized, flexible programs. Under our Processing Services option, customers can contract with CoreCard to provide
processing services for their accounts using CoreCard software configured to the customer’s preferences, with an option to license
the same software and bring it in-house when and if the customer decides to become its own processor in the future. We believe this
transition path for customers is unique in the industry.

The CoreCard software platform and modules include CoreENGINE™, CorelSSUE™, CoreFRAUD™, CoreCOLLECT™,
CoreAPP™  CoreMONEY™ and CoreACQUIRE™. Using a proprietary, base transaction processing platform called CoreENGINE,
the CoreCard application modules have been further enhanced to meet the specific requirements of different market segments; for
instance, CorelSSUE™ is available in different versions tailored to the requirements for issuing prepaid cards, fleet cards, bank cards
or private label cards/accounts as well as accounts receivable management. In addition, CoreCard configures and/or customizes its
robust base modules with additional or specific functionality to meet each customer’s requirements. The Company has developed and
licensed such products to customers in the prepaid, fleet, private label, retail and credit markets. As is typical of most software
companies, CoreCard expects to continually enhance and upgrade its existing software solutions and to develop additional modules
to meet changing customer and market requirements. To date, CoreCard has focused its extensive development and limited sales
activities on building a base of customers in each of its target markets, as well as putting in place the infrastructure and processes to
be able to scale the business successfully, particularly for the Processing Services business.

Historically, most of the Company’s sales have resulted from prospects contacting CoreCard based on an online search or through
industry referrals. CoreCard typically sells its products directly to customers, often in competitive situations, with relatively long sales
and implementation cycles.

We have several revenue streams. We receive software license fees that vary depending upon the number of licensed users, number
of accounts on the system, and the number of software modules licensed. We also derive service revenue from implementation,
customization, and annual maintenance and support contracts for our licensed software. Processing customers pay an implementation
and setup fee plus monthly service fees, primarily based on number of accounts, under a contract with a term of generally three or
more years. Depending on factors such as contract terms, customer implementation and testing schedule, and extent of customization
or configuration required and whether we are licensing or processing, the timing of revenue recognition on contracts may lead to
considerable fluctuation in revenue and profitability. There are often delays in implementation cycles, especially for processing
customers, due to third party approvals or processes that are outside of CoreCard’s control and thus it is difficult to predict with certainty
when we will be able to begin recognizing revenue on new contracts.

CoreCard’s licensed software products are used by its customers to manage and process various credit, debit and prepaid card
programs and there are a number of federal and state regulations governing the issuance of and the processing of financial
transactions associated with such cards. CoreCard’s customers are required to comply with such regulations and, to the extent that
customers depend on their licensed CoreCard software to manage and process their card accounts, the CoreCard software features
and functionality must allow customers to comply with the various governmental regulations. CoreCard continually evaluates applicable
regulations and regularly upgrades and enhances its software to help its customers meet their obligations to comply with current and
anticipated governmental regulations. As part of CoreCard’s processing business, CoreCard provides compliance-related services,
including data and network security, customer identification screening and regular reporting, which enable its customers to be in
compliance with applicable governmental regulations including but not limited to the Bank Secrecy Act and Anti-Money Laundering
regulations with final responsibility for compliance resting with the customer. Depending on the extent of changes and new
governmental regulations, CoreCard will regularly incur additional costs to modify its software and services to be compliant. CoreCard
has no costs related to compliance with environmental laws.

Our business is not considered seasonal although the use of certain of our products may grow with higher end-of-year spending
patterns and possibly cause a small revenue increase during this period.



Research and Development

We spent $8.9 million and $5.2 million in the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, on Company sponsored
research and development. We maintain a workforce of over 750 employees in our offshore operations in India, Romania, Dubai and
Colombia for software development and testing, as well as operations support for processing services. We are continuously improving
our financial technology software in response to market requirements and trends and expect to continue to do so. Additionally, we are
working on a new platform to maintain the latest technology.

Patents, Trademarks and Trade Secrets

We have one U.S. patent covering aspects of CoreCard's core software platform. It may be possible for competitors to duplicate certain
aspects of our products and processes even though we regard such aspects as proprietary. We have registered with the U.S. Patent
and Trademark Office and several foreign jurisdictions various trademarks and service marks for our products. We believe that an
active trade secret, trade name, trademark, and copyright protection program is one element in developing and maintaining brand
recognition and protecting our intellectual property. We presently market our products under trademarks and service marks such as
CoreCard, CoreENGINE™, CorelSSUE™, CoreCOLLECT™, CoreMONEY ™ and others.

Personnel

As of February 15, 2022, we had approximately 800 full-time equivalent employees (including our subsidiaries in the United States
and foreign countries). Of these, the majority are involved in CoreCard’s software development, testing and operations, and 7 in
corporate functions. Our employees are not represented by a labor union, we have not had any work stoppages or strikes, and we
believe our employee relations are good.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Except for the risk associated with fluctuations in currency, we do not believe
there are any specific risks attendant to our foreign operations that are significantly different than the general business risks discussed
elsewhere in this Annual Report.

ITEM1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2021, we had a lease covering approximately 20,000 square feet in Norcross, Georgia to house our product
development, sales, service and administration operations for our domestic operations. Our Norcross lease was renewed March 1,
2022 for a five year term and additional space of approximately 7,000 square feet. Our Colombia lease was signed in November 2021
for a five year term covering approximately 4,300 square feet. We lease approximately 2,900 square feet of office space in Dubai,
United Arab Emirates. We also lease a small office in Timisoara, Romania. We own a 6,350 square foot office facility in Bhopal, India,
to house the software development and testing activities of our offshore subsidiaries; we lease approximately 4,700 square feet of
additional office space in the same facility in Bhopal, India; and we lease approximately 5,500 square feet in Mumbai, India to house
additional staff for our offshore software development activities. We plan to procure additional office space in India and North America
to support our continual hiring efforts.

ITEM3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On or about July 9, 2019, a securities class action complaint was filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
New York (Case No. 1:19-cv-03949) by Michael Skrzeczkoski, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, against the
company, and certain current and former directors and officers. The complaint alleges, among other things, that certain of our
press releases and SEC filings were misleading as a result of the failure to disclose alleged related party transactions affecting
revenue recognition and the absence of disclosure regarding certain allegations against former director Parker H. Petit in
connection with his former position with MiMedx, Inc. The complaint seeks to recover attorney’s fees and costs and unspecified



damages on behalf of purchasers who acquired our stock during the period from January 23, 2019, through May 29, 2019, and
purportedly suffered financial harm as a result of the alleged misleading statements. On September 26, 2019, the Court appointed
Edgardo Canez as lead plaintiff (“Lead Plaintiff’) on behalf of the putative class. On November 18, 2019, Lead Plaintiff, individually
and on behalf of a putative class of persons or entities who purchased or otherwise acquired publicly traded company securities
from May 23, 2014 through May 29, 2019, filed an amended class action complaint against the company, and certain current and
former directors and officers (the “Amended Complaint”). The Amended Complaint alleges similar allegations in violation of
Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act as the previously filed complaint. The Amended Complaint seeks to
recover attorney’s fees and costs and unspecified damages. On January 2, 2020, Defendants submitted a motion to dismiss, and
on March 3, 2020, briefing on the motion to dismiss was completed. On April 6, 2021, the Court entered an order granting the
motion to dismiss without prejudice. On August 18, 2021, the Court filed an opinion, granting Defendants’ motion to dismiss without
prejudice and gave Lead Plaintiff twenty-one days to seek leave to amend. On October 6, 2021, the district court entered
judgment dismissing the case without prejudice.

On or about February 14, 2020, two purported shareholders, derivatively and on behalf of the Company, filed substantially similar
shareholder derivative actions in the Eastern District of New York against certain current and former directors and officers (the
“Individual Defendants”), and the Company as a nominal defendant (together with the Individual Defendants, the “Defendants”).
The complaints assert a claim against Messrs. Strange, Moise, Petit, Fuzzell and Chandler for a violation of Section 14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act by issuing purportedly misleading statements in the Company’s 2017 and 2018 Proxies. The complaints
also assert claims against the Individual Defendants for breaches of fiduciary duty, waste of corporate assets, and unjust
enrichment arising out of, among other things, purportedly undisclosed related party transactions, other relationships, and certain
allegations against former director Parker H. Petit in connection with his former position with MiMedx, Inc. and other companies.
The relief sought in the complaints includes changes to the Company’s corporate governance procedures, unspecified damages,
equitable relief, restitution, and attorney’s fees and costs. On April 20, 2020, the two derivative actions were consolidated and
captioned, In re Intelligent Systems Corporation Stockholder Derivative Litigation, Lead Case No. 1:20-cv-00832, in the Eastern
District of New York (the “Derivative Matter”). On June 19, 2020, Defendants filed their motion to dismiss. After a conference held
on August 24, 2020, the parties agreed that Defendants’ motion to dismiss would be temporarily withdrawn without prejudice to
refile after the conclusion of any discovery permitted by further Court order. On September 8, 2020, Plaintiffs moved for leave to
conduct limited discovery (“Plaintiffs’ Motion for Discovery”). On December 23, 2020, the Court entered a stipulation among the
parties whereby Plaintiffs’ Motion for Discovery shall be withdrawn, the Company will engage in limited discovery, and the parties
agree that the Derivative Matter shall be stayed pending resolution of the motion to dismiss in the related above-mentioned
securities litigation matter, among other things. On October 1, 2021, Plaintiffs filed a notice of voluntary dismissal. On November
2, 2021, the district court entered an order dismissing the case without prejudice.

ITEM4.  MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.

PART Il

ITEMS5.  MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is listed and traded on the NYSE under the symbol “CCRD”. We had 157 shareholders of record as of February
15,2022. This number does not include beneficial owners of our common stock whose shares are held in the names of various dealers,
clearing agencies, banks, brokers and other fiduciaries. The Company has not paid regular dividends in the past and does not intend
to pay dividends in the foreseeable future.



Repurchases of Securities

In November 2018, our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of $5 million, all of which has been utilized. In April
2021, the Board authorized an additional $10 million for our share repurchase program, of which $6.3 million has been utilized. Under
this publicly announced program, we are authorized to repurchase shares through open market purchases, privately negotiated
transactions or otherwise in accordance with applicable federal securities laws, including through Rule 10b5-1 trading plans and under
Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act. The repurchase program does not have an expiration date and may be suspended or discontinued
at any time.

The following table sets forth information regarding our purchases of shares of our common stock during the three months
ended December 31, 2021:

Total Number Average Price Total Number of Maximum
of Shares Paid per Share! ~ Shares Purchased ~ Approximate Dollar
Purchased as Part of Publicly ~ Value of Shares that

Announced May Yet Be
Program Purchased Under the

Program

October 1, 2021 to October 31, 2021 - - - $ 4,100,000
November 1, 2021 to November 30, 2021 - - - $ 4,100,000
December 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021 10,754 $ 39.66 10,754 $ 3,673,000
Total 10,754 $ 39.66 10,754 $ 3,673,000

Equity Compensation Plan Information

See Item 12 for information regarding securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans, which is incorporated herein
by reference.

1 This price includes per share commissions paid.



Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

There have been no sales of unregistered securities by the Company during the period covered by this Form 10-K.
ITEM7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Executive Summary

Our consolidated operations consist of our CoreCard Software subsidiary and its affiliate companies in Romania, India, Dubai and
Colombia as well as a corporate office in Atlanta, Georgia which provides significant administrative, human resources and executive
management support to CoreCard.

We provide technology solutions and processing services to the financial services market, commonly referred to as the FinTech
industry. We derive our product revenue from licensing our comprehensive suite of financial transaction management software to
financial institutions, retailers, processors and accounts receivable businesses to manage their credit and debit cards, prepaid
cards, private label cards, fleet cards, buy now pay later programs, loyalty programs, and accounts receivable and loan
transactions. Our service revenue consists of fees for software maintenance and support for licensed software products, fees for
processing services that we provide to companies that outsource their financial transaction processing functions to us, and
professional services primarily for software customizations provided to both license and processing customers.

Our results vary in part depending on the size and number of software licenses recognized as well as the value and number of
professional services contracts recognized in a particular period. As we continue to grow our Processing Services business, we
continue to gain economies of scale on the investment we have made in the infrastructure, resources, processes and software features
developed over the past number of years to support this growing side of our business. We are adding new processing customers at a
faster pace than we are adding new license customers, resulting in steady growth in the processing revenue stream. However, we
also receive license revenue and are experiencing growth in our professional services revenue due to the addition of Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc. as a customer in 2018, referred to as “Customer A” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. In total, this
customer represented 71 percent and 69 percent of our consolidated revenues for 2021 and 2020, respectively. We expect future
professional services, maintenance and license revenue from this customer in 2022 and future years; however, the amount and timing
will be dependent on various factors not in our control such as the number of accounts on file and the level of customization needed
by the customer. License revenue from this customer, similar to other license arrangements, is tiered based on the number of active
accounts on the system. Once the customer achieves each tier level, they receive a perpetual license up to that number of accounts;
inactive accounts do not count toward the license tier. The customer receives an unlimited perpetual license at a maximum tier level
that allows them to utilize the software for any number of active accounts. They currently use the software for a single institution and
additional license fees apply if multiple institutions are added, which occurred in the first quarter of 2022. Support and maintenance
fees are charged based on the tier level achieved and increase at new tier levels.

During 2020, we experienced the loss of a large customer due to insolvency, referred to as “Customer C” in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. We recognized revenue of $605,000, $845,000 and $3,700,000 from this customer for the years ended 2021,
2020 and 2019, respectively. We do not expect any future revenue from this customer. We opened an office in Dubai in November
2020 and hired some of the insolvent company’s employees with significant payments industry experience and experience operating
CoreCard’s Processing platforms in the related regions, and we converted some of their customers to our processing platform.

We typically receive revenue based on the number of active accounts on file rather than transaction volume and therefore the COVID-
19 pandemic and related economic slowdown had a muted impact on our results. Most of our employees in India worked remotely
throughout the pandemic which impacted our ability to hire and train new employees. We maintained key functions and business
continuity while delivering growth in our professional services revenue and expect to hire a significant number of new employees in
India in 2022 to enable new and existing customer growth.

The infrastructure of our multi customer environment is scalable for the future. A significant portion of our expense is related to
personnel, including more than 750 employees located in India, Romania, Dubai and Colombia. In 2017, we opened a second office
in India, located near Mumbai, to enable us to attract the level of talent required for our software development and testing. In October
2020, we opened an office in Dubai, United Arab Emirates to support CoreCard’s expansion of processing services into new markets
in the Asia Pacific, Middle East, Africa and European regions. In October 2021, we opened a new location in Bogota, Colombia where
we expect to hire technical personnel to support existing customers and continued growth. Our ability to hire and train employees on



our processes and software impacts our ability to onboard new customers and deliver professional services for software
customizations. In addition, we have certain corporate office expenses associated with being a public company that impact our
operating results.

Our revenue fluctuates from period to period and our results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in future
periods. Itis difficult to predict the level of consolidated revenue on a quarterly basis for various reasons, including the following:

o  Software license revenue in a given period may consist of a relatively small number of contracts, and contract values can vary
considerably depending on the software product and scope of the license sold. Consequently, even minor delays in delivery
under a software contract, which may be out of our control, could have a significant and unpredictable impact on the
consolidated revenue that we recognize in a given quarterly or annual period.

o  Customers may decide to postpone or cancel a planned implementation of our software for any number of reasons, which
may be unrelated to our software or contract performance, that may affect the amount, timing and characterization of our
deferred and/or recognized revenue.

o  Customers typically require our professional services to modify or enhance their CoreCard software implementation based
on their specific business strategy and operational requirements, which vary from customer to customer and period to period.

e The timing of new processing customer implementations is often dependent on third party approvals or processes which are
typically not under our direct control.

We continue to maintain a strong cash position. We intend to use cash balances to support the domestic and international
operations associated with our CoreCard business and to expand our operations in the FinTech industry through financing the
growth of CoreCard and, if appropriate opportunities become available, through acquisitions of businesses in this industry. In
November 2018, our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of $5 million, all of which has been utilized. In
April 2021, the Board authorized an additional $10 million for our share repurchase program, of which $6.3 million has been utilized.
We made share repurchases of $9.7 million in 2021, and $1.6 million in repurchases in 2020. We have $3.7 million of authorized
share repurchases remaining at December 31, 2021.

Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements presented in this Annual Report.

Revenue - Total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $48,248,000 which represents a 34 percent increase over
2020.

e Revenue from services was $42,383,000 in 2021, which represents a 31 percent increase from 2020 revenue of $32,273,000.
Revenue from transaction processing services, software maintenance and support services, and professional services were
greater in 2021 as compared to 2020 due to an increase in the number of customers and accounts on file and an increase in
the number and value of professional services contracts completed in 2021. We expect that processing services will continue
to grow as our customer base increases; however, the time required to implement new customer programs could be delayed
due to third party integration and approval processes and other factors. It is difficult to predict with accuracy the number and
value of professional services contracts that our customers will require in a given period. Customers typically request our
professional services to modify or enhance their CoreCard software implementation based on their specific business strategy
and operational requirements, which vary from customer to customer and period to period.

o Revenue from products, which includes software license fees, was $5,865,000 in 2021, an increase of 63 percent from 2020
revenue of $3,600,000. The increase results from more customers achieving new license tiers in 2021 than in 2020.

Cost of Revenue — Total cost of revenue was 47 percent of total revenue for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021,
compared to 43 percent for the twelve months ended December 31, 2020. The increase in cost of revenue as a percentage of
revenue is primarily driven by investments made in our processing infrastructure in 2020 and 2021 including hardware and software
purchases and additional space in our data centers. Cost of revenue includes costs to provide annual maintenance and support
services to our installed base of licensed customers, costs to provide professional services and costs to provide our financial
transaction processing services. The cost and gross margins on such revenues can vary considerably from period to period
depending on the customer mix, customer requirements and project complexity as well as the mix of our U.S. and offshore



employees working on the various aspects of services provided. In addition, we continue to devote the resources necessary to
support our growing processing business, including direct costs for regulatory compliance, infrastructure, network certifications
and customer support. Investments in our infrastructure in 2020 and 2021 are in anticipation of adding customers in future periods.
As such, we will not experience economies of scale unless we add additional customers, as anticipated. This may be subject to
change in the future if new regulations or processing standards are implemented causing us to incur additional costs to comply.

Operating Expenses — For the twelve months ended December 31, 2021, total operating expenses from consolidated operations
were higher as compared to the corresponding period in 2020 primarily due to higher research and development expenses and
higher general and administrative expenses. Research and development expenses were higher mainly due to payroll for additional
offshore technical personnel and hardship bonus payments related to the pandemic’s impact on our offshore employees.
Additionally, we hired onshore technical personnel to work on the development of an updated platform. General and administrative
expenses increased due to higher salaries expenses due to an increase in headcount. Marketing expenses increased 111 percent
in 2021. Our client base increased in 2021 and 2020 with minimal marketing efforts as we continue to have prospects contact us
via online searches and industry referrals; however, we will continue to re-evaluate our marketing expenditures as needed to
competitively position the Processing Services business.

Investment Income (Loss) - Investment Income (Loss) was a loss of $172,000 in 2021 and loss of $1,044,000 in 2020. The 2020
investment losses primarily relate to first quarter 2020 impairment charges on investments resulting from the economic downturn
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic and losses on equity method investments. We did not record any impairments in 2021.

Other Income, net— Other Income, net was $277,000 in 2021 and $378,000 in 2020. The decrease is primarily due to lower interest
income resulting from a lower cash balance and lower interest rates.

Income Taxes — We recorded income tax expense of $2,724,000 and $2,468,000 in 2021 and 2020, respectively, an effective
tax rate of 23.2% in both years. We expect our future effective tax rate to be within the range of 23-25%.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash balance at December 31, 2021 was $29,244,000 compared to $37,956,000 at December 31, 2020. During the year ended
December 31, 2021, cash provided by operations was $8,915,000 compared to cash provided by operations of $20,966,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2020. The decrease is primarily due to a higher accounts receivable balance, a decrease in cash held for
program management funding, higher depreciation and amortization, partially offset by higher accrued payroll and deferred revenue.
In addition, during the second quarter of 2021, we invested $1,000,000 in a privately held supply chain financing company. During the
fourth quarter of 2021, we made an $800,000 investment in a privately held identity and professional services company with ties to the
FinTech industry, which is described in more detail in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, we used $5,425,000 of cash to acquire computer equipment and related software primarily
to enhance our existing processing environment in the U.S. as well for computer equipment for the technical resources added in our
India office.

We do not expect to pay any regular or special dividends in the foreseeable future. We expect to have sufficient liquidity from cash on
hand as well as projected customer payments to support our operations and capital equipment purchases in the foreseeable future.
Currently we expect to use cash in excess of what is required for our current operations for opportunities we believe will expand our
FinTech business, as exemplified in transactions described in Notes 3 and 5, although there can be no assurance that appropriate
opportunities will arise. Additionally, our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of $5 million in November 2018,
all of which has been utilized, and an additional $10 million of share repurchases in April 2021. We made share repurchases of $9.7
million in 2021, and $1.6 million in share repurchases in 2020.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our Consolidated Financial Statements
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these
financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses. We consider certain accounting policies related to revenue recognition and valuation of investments to be critical policies



due to the estimation processes involved in each. For a detailed description on the application of these and other accounting policies,
see Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition — Product revenue consists of fees from software licenses. Service revenue consists of fees for processing
services; professional services for software customization, consulting, and training; reimbursable expenses; and software
maintenance and customer support.

Our software license arrangements generally fall into one of the following four categories:

e aninitial contract with the customer to license certain software modules, to provide services to get the customer live on the
software (such as training and customization) and to provide post contract support (‘PCS”) for a specified period of time
thereafter,

e purchase of additional licenses for new modules or for tier upgrades for a higher volume of licensed accounts after the initial
contract,

e other optional standalone contracts, usually performed after the customer is live on the software, for services such as new
interfaces or custom features requested by the customer, additional training and problem resolution not covered in annual
maintenance contracts, or

e contracts for certain licensed software products that involve an initial fee plus recurring monthly fees during the contract life.

At contract inception, we assess the products and services promised in our contracts with customers and identify a performance
obligation for each promise to transfer to the customer a product or service (or bundle of products or services) that is distinct. A
performance obligation is distinct if a product or service is separately identifiable from other items in the bundled package and if a
customer can benefit from it on its own or with other resources that are readily available to the customer. To identify our
performance obligations, we consider all of the products or services promised in the contract regardless of whether they are
explicitly stated or are implied by customary business practices. We recognize revenue when or as we satisfy a performance
obligation by transferring control of a product or service to a customer. Our revenue recognition policies for each of the situations
described above are discussed below.

Our software licenses generally have significant stand-alone functionality to the customer upon delivery and are considered to be
functional intellectual property. Additionally, the purpose in granting these software licenses to a customer is typically to provide
the customer a right to use our intellectual property. Our software licenses are generally considered distinct performance
obligations, and revenue allocated to the software license is typically recognized at a point in time upon delivery of the license.
Initial implementation fees do not meet the criteria for separate accounting because the software usually requires significant
modification or customization that is essential to its functionality. We recognize revenue related to implementations over the life of
the customer once the implementation is complete.

We account for the PCS element contained in the initial contract based on relative standalone selling price, which is annual renewal
fees for such services, and PCS is recognized ratably on a straight-line basis over the period specified in the contract as we
generally satisfy these performance obligations evenly using a time-elapsed output method over the contract term given there is
no discernible pattern of performance. Upon renewal of the PCS contract by the customer, we recognize revenues ratably on a
straight-line basis over the period specified in the PCS contract. All of our software customers purchase software maintenance and
support contracts and renew such contracts annually.

Certain initial software contracts contain specified future service elements for scheduled completion following the implementation,
and related recognition, of the initial license. In these instances, after the initial license recognition, where distinct future
performance obligations are identified in the contract and we could reliably measure the completion of each identified performance
obligation, we have recognized revenue at the time the individual performance obligation was completed.

Purchases of additional licenses for tier upgrades or additional modules are generally recognized as license revenue in the period
in which the purchase is made for perpetual licenses or ratably over the remaining contract term for non-perpetual licenses.

Services provided under standalone contracts that are optional to the customer and are outside of the scope of the initial contract
are single element services contracts. These standalone services contracts are not essential to the functionality of the software
contained in the initial contract and generally do not include acceptance clauses or refund rights as may be included in the initial
software contracts, as described above. Revenues from these services contracts, which are generally performed within a relatively
short period of time, are recognized when the services are complete or in some cases as the services are provided. These revenues
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generally re-occur as contracts are renewed. Payment terms for professional services may be based on an upfront fixed fee with
the remainder due upon completion or on a time and materials basis.

For contracts for licensed software which include an initial fee plus recurring monthly fees for software usage, maintenance and
support, we recognize the total fees ratably on a straight-line basis over the estimated life of the contract as services revenue.

Revenues from processing services are typically volume- or activity-based depending on factors such as the number of accounts
processed, number of accounts on the system, number of hours of services or computer resources used. For processing services
which include an initial fee plus recurring monthly fees for services, we recognize the initial fees ratably on a straight-line basis
over the estimated life of the contract as services revenue. The payment terms may include tiered pricing structures with the base
tier representing a minimum monthly usage fee. For processing services revenues, we stand ready to provide continuous access
to our processing platforms and perform an unspecified quantity of outsourced and transaction-processing services for a specified
term or terms. Accordingly, processing services are generally viewed as a stand-ready performance obligation comprised of a
series of distinct daily services. We typically satisfy our processing services performance obligations over time as the services are
provided.

Technology or service components from third parties are frequently embedded in or combined with our products or service
offerings. We are often responsible for billing the client in these arrangements and transmitting the applicable fees to the third
party. We determine whether we are responsible for providing the actual product or service as a principal, or for arranging for the
solution or service to be provided by the third party as an agent. Judgment is applied to determine whether we are the principal or
the agent by evaluating whether we have control of the product or service prior to it being transferred to the customer. The principal
versus agent assessment is performed at the performance obligation level. Indicators that we consider in determining if we have
control include whether we are primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the specified product or service to the
customer, whether we have inventory risk and discretion in establishing the price the customer ultimately pays for the product or
service. Depending upon the level of our contractual responsibilities and obligations for delivering solutions to end customers, we
have arrangements where we are the principal and recognize the gross amount billed to the customer and other arrangements
where we are the agent and recognize the net amount retained.

Revenue is recorded net of applicable sales tax.

Deferred revenue consists of advance payments by software customers for annual or quarterly PCS, advance payments from
customers for software licenses and professional services not yet delivered, and initial implementation payments for processing
services or bundled license and support services in multi-year contracts. Deferred revenue is classified as long-term until such
time that it becomes likely that the services or products will be provided within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Valuation of Investments — \We hold minority interests in non-publicly traded companies whose values are not readily determinable
and are based on management’s estimate of realizability of the value of the investment. Future adverse changes in market conditions,
poor operating results, lack of progress of the investee company or its inability to raise capital to support its business plan could result
in investment losses or an inability to recover the current carrying value of the investment. Our policy with respect to minority interests
is to record an impairment charge when we conclude an investment has experienced a decline in value that is other than temporary.
At least quarterly, we review our investments to determine any impairment in their carrying value and we write-down any impaired
asset at quarter-end to our best estimate of its current realizable value.

We have an equity investment with a privately held identity and professional services company with ties to the FinTech industry. In
2021, the company transferred its advisory business to a new entity. We contributed our note receivable of $2,806,000 and $800,000
of cash for a 28% stake in the new entity. We continue to hold a 40% ownership interest in the original company which will continue
with its events and media operations. We performed valuations of our investments in these two companies. As a result, we determined
that our investments were not impaired and no adjustment was required under the applicable accounting standards. We evaluate on
a continuing basis whether any impairment indicators are present that would require additional analysis or write-downs of the
investment. While we have not recorded an impairment related to these investments as of December 31, 2021, variations from current
expectations could impact future assessments resulting in future impairment charges.

We also have an investment with a privately held technology company and program manager in the FinTech industry. In the first

quarter of 2020, due to the economic downturn resulting from the recent pandemic, we recorded an impairment charge of $750,000
to reduce the carrying value of the investee company to $0.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not currently have any off-balance sheet arrangements that are reasonably likely to have a current or future material adverse
effect on our financial condition, liquidity or results of operations.

Factors That May Affect Future Operations

Future operations are subject to risks and uncertainties that may negatively impact our future results of operations or projected cash
requirements. It is difficult to predict future quarterly and annual results with certainty.

Among the numerous factors that may affect our consolidated results of operations or financial condition are the following:

Weakness or instability in the global financial markets could have a negative impact due to potential customers (most of
whom perform some type of financial services) delaying decisions to purchase software or initiate processing services.
Increased federal and state regulations and reluctance by financial institutions to act as sponsor banks for prospective
customers could result in losses and additional cash requirements.

Our largest customer represented 71% of our consolidated revenues for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021. In
the event of material failures to meet contract obligations related to the services provided, there is risk of breach of contract
and loss of the customer and related future revenues. Additionally, loss of the customer and related future revenues could
result if they choose an alternative service provider, build an in-house solution, or decide to exit the business or service line
that falls under the services that we provide for them.

Delays in software development projects could cause our customers to postpone implementations or delay payments, which
would increase our costs and reduce our revenue and cash.

We could fail to deliver software products which meet the business and technology requirements of our target markets within
a reasonable time frame and at a price point that supports a profitable, sustainable business model.

Our processing business is impacted, directly or indirectly, by more regulations than our licensed software business. If we
fail to provide services that comply with (or allow our customers to comply with) applicable regulations or processing
standards, we could be subject to financial or other penalties that could negatively impact our business.

A security breach in our platform could expose confidential information of our customers’ account holders, hackers could
seize our digital infrastructure and hold it for ransom or other cyber risk events could occur and create material losses in
excess of our insurance coverage.

Software errors or poor quality control may delay product releases, increase our costs, result in non-acceptance of our
software by customers or delay revenue recognition.

We could fail to expand our base of customers as quickly as anticipated, resulting in lower revenue and profits and increased
cash needs.

We could fail to retain key software developers and managers who have accumulated years of know-how in our target
markets and company products or fail to attract and train a sufficient number of new software developers and testers to
support our product development plans and customer requirements at projected cost levels.

Increasing and changing government regulations in the United States and foreign countries related to such issues as data
privacy, financial and credit transactions could require changes to our products and services which could increase our costs
and could affect our existing customer relationships or prevent us from getting new customers.

Delays in anticipated customer payments for any reason would increase our cash requirements and could adversely impact
our profits.

Competitive pressures (including pricing, changes in customer requirements and preferences, and competitor product
offerings) may cause prospective customers to choose an alternative product solution, resulting in lower revenue and profits
(or losses).

Our future capital needs are uncertain and depend on a number of factors; additional capital may not be available on
acceptable terms, if at all.

Volatility in the markets, including as a result of political instability, civil unrest, war or terrorism, or pandemics or other natural
disasters, such as the recent outbreak of coronavirus, could adversely affect future results of operations and could negatively
impact the valuation of our investments.

Other general economic and political conditions could cause customers to delay or cancel purchases.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements — Refer to Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following Consolidated Financial Statements and related report of independent registered public accounting firm are included
in this report and are incorporated by reference in Part I, ltem 8 hereof. See Index to Financial Statements on page F-1 hereof.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm — Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC (PCAOB ID 281)
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2021 and 2020

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(@)  Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that
any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the
desired control objectives. In addition, the design of disclosure controls and procedures must reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints and management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible controls and procedures relative
to their costs.

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives. As of the end of
the period covered by this Annual Report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the
Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act.
Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls
and procedures are effective at that reasonable assurance level.

(b)  Changes in internal control over financial reporting

We regularly review our system of internal control over financial reporting and make changes to our processes and systems to improve
controls and increase efficiency, while ensuring that we maintain an effective internal control environment.

There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting or in other factors identified in connection
with this evaluation that occurred during the period covered by this report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

(c)  Management's report on internal control over financial reporting

The management of CoreCard Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rule 13a — 15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company maintains accounting and
internal control systems which are intended to provide reasonable assurance that the assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition, transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorization and accounting records
are reliable for preparing financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

13



Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting objectives because of
its inherent limitations. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves human diligence and compliance and is
subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures. Internal control over financial reporting also can be
circumvented by collusion or improper management override. Because of such limitations, there is a risk that material
misstatements may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by internal control over financial reporting. However, these
inherent limitations are known features of the financial reporting process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process
safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, risk.

The Company’s management evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2021. In making this evaluation, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
(“COSQ”) of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013). Based on our evaluation management
believes that, as of December 31, 2021, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART Il
ITEM10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Please refer to the subsection entitled “Proposal 1 - The Election of One Director - Nominee” and “Proposal 1 — The Election of
One Director — Executive Officers” in our Proxy Statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “Proxy Statement”)
for information about the individual nominated as director and about the directors and executive officers of the Company. This
information is incorporated into this Item 10 by reference. Information regarding compliance by directors and executive officers of
the Company and owners of more than 10 percent of our common stock with the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is contained under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” in the Proxy Statement. This information is incorporated into this Item 10 by reference. Information regarding the
Company’s Audit Committee and its composition is contained under the caption “Proposal 1 — The Election of One Director -
Nominee” and “Proposal 1 — The Election of One Director — Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors” in the Proxy
Statement. This information is incorporated into this Item 10 by reference.

There have been no material changes to the procedures by which shareholders may recommend nominees to the Company’s
Board of Directors.

We have a Code of Ethics that applies to all directors, officers, and employees. The Code of Ethics is posted on our website at

www.corecard.com. We also disclose on our website, within the time required by the rules of the SEC, any waivers of, or
amendments to, the Code of Ethics for the benefit of an executive officer.

ITEM11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Please refer to the subsection entitied “Proposal 1 - The Election of One Director - Executive Compensation” in the Proxy Statement
for information about management compensation. This information is incorporated into this Item 11 by reference.

ITEM12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information under the captions “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Securities Authorized
for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans” in our 2022 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The lease on our headquarters and primary facility at One Meca Way, Norcross, Georgia is held by ISC Properties, LLC, an entity
controlled by J. Leland Strange, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Strange holds a 100% ownership interest in ISC
Properties, LLC. We paid ISC Properties, LLC $265,000 and $214,000 in the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Please refer to the subsection entitied “Proposal 1 - The Election of One Director - Nominee” in the Proxy Statement referred to in Item
10 for information regarding the independence of the Company’s directors. This information is incorporated into this Item 13 by
reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Please refer to the subsection entitled “Independent Registered Public Accountants” in the Proxy Statement for information about the

fees paid to and services performed by our independent public accountants. This information is incorporated into this Item 14 by
reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

We are filing the following exhibits with this report or incorporating them by reference to earlier filings. Shareholders may request a
copy of any exhibit by contacting Matthew A. White, Secretary, CoreCard Corporation, One Meca Way, Norcross, Georgia 30093;
telephone (770) 381-2900. There is a charge of $.50 per page to cover expenses of copying and mailing.

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant dated December 15, 2021. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K dated December 15, 2021.)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant dated December 15, 2021. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the
Registrant's Form 8-K dated December 15, 2021.)

41 Description of the Company’s Securities Registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. (Incorporated
by reference to Item 1 of the Registrant’s Form 8-A filed May 26, 2021.)

10.1 Lease Agreement dated March 1, 2022, between the Registrant and ISC Properties, LLC. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant's Form 8-K dated March 3, 2022.)

10.2 Management Compensation Plans and Arrangements:
(@) 2015 Employee Stock Incentive Plan
(b) 2011 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan
(c) 2020 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan

Exhibit 10.3(a) is incorporated by reference to the Registrant's 2015 Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A.
Exhibit 10.3(b) is incorporated by reference to the Registrant's 2011 Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A.

211 List of subsidiaries of Registrant.

231 Consent of Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC.

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS  Inline XBRL Instance Document ***
101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema ***

*kk

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation

*kk

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definitions
101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels ***

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation ***

*** XBRL information is furnished and not filed or a part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securities

Act of 1933, as amended, is deemed not filed for purposes of section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise
is not subject to liability under these sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Annual
Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CORECARD CORPORATION
Registrant

Date: March 3, 2022 By: /s/ J. Leland Strange
J. Leland Strange
Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Capacity Date

Chairman of the Board, President
/s/ J. Leland St ' ' March 3, 2022
N Lilzgd St::zgg Chief Executive Officer and Director arch 3, 20

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Matthew A. White Chief Financial Officer March 3, 2022
Matthew A. White (Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)
/s/ A. Russell Chandler Il Director March 3, 2022

A. Russell Chandler Il
March 3, 2022

/s/ Philip H. Moise Director
Philip H. Moise
/s/ Elizabeth W. Camp Director March 3, 2022

Elizabeth W. Camp
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NICHOLS, CAULEY & ASSOCIATES, LLC
3550 Engineering Drive, Suite 250
Peachtree Corners, Georgia 30092
404-214-1301 FAX 404-214-1302
atlanta@nicholscauley.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of CoreCard Corporation
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CoreCard Corporation and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes (collectively referred
to as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the
period ended December 31, 2021, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) ("PCAOB") and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or
fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.
As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material
to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical
audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating
the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which
they relate.

Critical Audit Matter — Revenue Recognition — Refer to Note 1 of the Financial Statements.
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Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company recognizes revenue when or as the Company satisfies a customer agreement performance

obligation by transferring control of a product or service to a customer, in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company
expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

In determining revenue recognition for these customer agreements, judgment may need to be exercised by the Company, and will
include the following:

- An assessment of the products and services promised in contracts or customer agreements, and the identification of a

performance obligation for each promise to transfer to the customer a product or service that is distinct.

- Determination of relative standalone selling price for distinct performance obligations.

- The timing of product or service delivery for performance obligations.
Given these factors, the related audit effort in evaluating management's judgments in determining revenue recognition for these
customer agreements was extensive.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audlit
Our principal audit procedures related to the Company’s revenue recognition for these customer agreements included the following:
- We evaluated the internal controls related to the identification of distinct performance obligations and the determination of
the timing of revenue recognition.
- We evaluated management's significant accounting policies related to these customer agreements.
- We selected customer agreements and performed the following procedures:
o  Obtained and read customer agreements or contracts for each selected agreement.
o Evaluated and tested management’s identification of significant terms for completeness, including the
identification of distinct performance obligations.
o  From the terms in the customer agreement, evaluated the appropriateness of management’s application of their
accounting principles, in their determination of revenue recognition conclusions.

- We tested the mathematical accuracy of management's calculations of revenue and the associated timing of revenue
recognized in the financial statements.

Critical Audit Matter — Valuation of Investments - Refer to Note 1 and Note 3 to the Financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description:

The Company evaluates equity method investments for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the investment might not be recoverable. Should the evaluation indicate impairment of the investment, and the
circumstances indicate that the impairment is other than temporary impairment, the impairment is recognized through a reduction of
the carrying amount of the investment.

Concluding on identifying events or circumstances regarding the recoverability of an investment carrying amount, measuring
impairment, and determining if impairment is other than temporary, involve significant and complex management judgment, specific
to a particular investment.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit:
Our principal audit procedures related to the Company’s process for equity method investment other than temporary impairment
evaluation included:
- We evaluated the internal controls related to the identification of events or changes in circumstances indicating that the
carrying amount of an investment might not be recoverable.
- We obtained and read management’s equity method investment assessment documentation for evaluating events or
changes that may indicate that the carrying amount of an investment might not be recoverable.
- We reviewed management's assessment of events or changes in circumstances for reasonableness.
- We evaluated management’s significant accounting policies related to the identification of other than temporary impairment.

/s Nichols, Cauley and Associates, LLC
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We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2015.
Atlanta, Georgia

March 2, 2022
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CoreCard Corporation
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

As of December 31, 2021 2020
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash $ 29,244 $ 37,956
Accounts receivable, net 5,547 3,270
Notes and interest receivable, current portion 220 -
Other current assets 1,826 1,263
Total current assets 36,837 42489
Investments 6,355 1,921
Notes and interest receivable, net of current portion 147 2,681
Property and equipment, at cost less accumulated depreciation 10,371 6,914
Other long-term assets 4,438 3,020
Total assets $ 58,148 $ 57,025

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 2,763 $ 714
Deferred revenue, current portion 2,263 1,322
Accrued payroll 2,145 1,901
Accrued expenses 404 321
Income tax payable 1,004 954
Other current liabilities 2,274 4,850
Total current liabilities 10,853 10,062
Deferred revenue, net of current portion 164 -
Deferred tax liability 549 818
Long-term lease obligation 2,708 1,994
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,421 2,812

Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)

Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value: Authorized shares - 20,000,000;
Issued shares — 9,001,311 and 8,929,368 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively;
Outstanding shares — 8,689,815 and 8,885,797 at December 31, 2021 and 2020,

respectively 90 89
Additional paid-in capital 16,261 15,836
Treasury stock, 311,496 and 43,571 shares as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, at cost (11,327) (1,639)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (194) (140)
Accumulated income 39,044 30,005

Total stockholders’ equity 43,874 44,151
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 58,148 $ 57,025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CoreCard Corporation
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
Revenue
Services $42,383 $ 32,273
Products 5,865 3,600
Total net revenue 48,248 35,873
Cost of revenue
Services 22,902 15,427
Products - -
Total cost of revenue 22,902 15,427
Expenses
Marketing 279 132
General and administrative 4,550 3,866
Research and development 8,859 5,153
Income from operations 11,658 11,295
Investment loss (172) (1,044)
Other income 277 378
Income before income taxes 11,763 10,629
Income taxes 2,724 2,468
Net income $ 9,039 $ 8,161
Earnings per share:
Basic $1.03 $0.91
Diluted $1.03 $0.91
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 8,777,066 8,919,602
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 8,809,603 9,014,985

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
Net income $ 9,039 $ 8,161
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments (54) (46)
Comprehensive income $ 8,985 $ 8,115

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CoreCard Corporation
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Additional Paid-In

(in thousands, except share amounts)

Accumulated Other

Accumulated

(in thousands, except share amounts) Common Stock Capital Treasury Stock Comprehensive Loss Earnings Stockholders’ Equity
Shares Amount

Balance at December 31, 2019 8,924,988 $89 $ 15,450 $ - $ (94) $ 21,844 $ 37,289
Common stock repurchased* (43,571) (1,639) (1,639)
Net income 8,161 8,161
Stock compensation expense 4,380 386 386
Foreign currency translation adjustment (46) (46)

Balance at December 31, 2020 8,885,797 $89 $ 15,836 $ (1,639) $ (140) $ 30,005 $ 44,151
Stock options exercised 67,500 1 107 108
Common stock repurchased* (267,925) (9,688) (9,688)
Net income 9,039 9,039
Stock compensation expense 4,443 318 318
Foreign currency translation adjustment (54) (54)

Balance at December 31, 2021 8,689,815 $90 $ 16,261 $ (11,327) $ (194) $ 39,044 $ 43,874

*At December 31, 2021, approximately $3,673,000 was authorized for future repurchases of our common stock.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CoreCard Corporation
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN): 2021 2020
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 9,039 $ 8,161
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,796 2,138
Stock-based compensation expense 319 386
Gain on sale of investment - (125)
Provision for deferred income taxes (227) 543
Non-cash investment loss - 1,009
Non-cash interest income - (131)
Equity in loss of affiliate company 172 400
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net (2,277) 5,489
Interest receivable (125) -
Other current assets (605) (358)
Other long-term assets (61) 22
Accounts payable 321 311
Accrued payroll 244 (602)
Deferred revenue, current portion 941 633
Accrued expenses 83 168
Other current liabilities (2,869) 2,945
Deferred revenue, net of current portion 164 (23)
Net cash provided by operating activities 8,915 20,966
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (5,425) (6,875)
Advances on note and interest receivable (550) (1,000)
Purchase of intangible asset (400) -
Purchase of long-term investment (1,800) -
Proceeds from payments on notes receivable 183 -
Proceeds from sale of investments -- 135
Net cash used in investing activities (7,992) (7,740)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Sale of capital stock pursuant to exercise of option 107 -
Repurchases of common stock (9,688) (1,639)
Net cash used in financing activities (9,581) (1,639)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash (54) (46)
Net (decrease) increase in cash (8,712) 11,541
Cash at beginning of year 37,956 26,415
Cash at end of year $ 29,244 $ 37,956
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for income taxes $ 2767 $ 1,826
Purchases of property and equipment, accrued but not paid $ 1,728 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.



1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization — In this document, terms such as the “Company”, “we”, “us”, “our” and “CoreCard” refer to CoreCard Corporation, a Georgia
corporation, and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Consolidation — The financial statements include the accounts of our majority owned and controlled non-U.S. subsidiary companies after
elimination of material inter-company accounts and transactions.

Nature of Operations — Our operations are conducted through our affiliate companies in Romania, India, Dubai and Colombia, as well as the
corporate office in Norcross, Georgia which provides significant administrative, human resources and executive management support. CoreCard
provides technology solutions and processing services to the financial technology and services market, commonly referred to as the FinTech
industry.

Use of Estimates - In preparing the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,
management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. These estimates and assumptions also affect amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Areas where we use estimates and make assumptions are to determine
our allowance for doubtful accounts, valuation of our investments, depreciation and amortization expense, accrued expenses and deferred
income taxes.

Translation of Foreign Currencies — We consider that the respective local currencies are the functional currencies for our foreign operations.
We translate assets and liabilities to U.S. dollars at period-end exchange rates. We translate income and expense items at average rates of
exchange prevailing during the period. Translation adjustments are recorded as accumulated other comprehensive gain or loss as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity. Upon sale of an investment in a foreign operation, the currency translation adjustment component
attributable to that operation is removed from accumulated other comprehensive loss and is reported as part of gain or loss on sale of
discontinued operations.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts — Accounts receivable are customer obligations due under normal trade terms.
They are stated at the amount management expects to collect. We sell our software products and transaction processing services to companies
involved in a variety of industries that provide some form of credit or prepaid financing options or perform financial services. We perform
continuing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition and we do not require collateral. The amount of accounting loss for which
we are at risk in these unsecured receivables is limited to their carrying value.

Senior management reviews accounts receivable on a regular basis to determine if any receivables will potentially be uncollectible. We include
any accounts receivable balances that are estimated to be uncollectible in our overall allowance for doubtful accounts. After all attempts to
collect a receivable have failed, the receivable is written off against the allowance. Based on the information available to us, we believe our
allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2021 is adequate. However, actual write-offs might exceed the recorded allowance. Refer
to Note 4 for additional information.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the related asset. Upon
retirement or sale, the cost of assets disposed of and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting
gain or loss is credited or charged to income. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. We continually evaluate whether
events and circumstances have occurred that indicate the remaining estimated useful life of property and equipment may warrant revision, or
that the remaining balance of these assets may not be recoverable. An asset is considered to be impaired when its carrying amount exceeds
the sum of the undiscounted future net cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. The amount of the
impairment loss, if any, which is equal to the amount by which the carrying value exceeds its fair value, is charged to current operations.

In the year ended December 31, 2021, we began capitalizing certain internal-use software and system development costs. Accordingly, the
specifically identified costs incurred to develop or obtain software, which is intended for internal use, are not capitalized until the preliminary
project stage is completed and management, with the relevant authority, authorizes and commits to funding a software project and it is probable
that the project will be completed and the software will be used to perform the function intended. Costs incurred during a software development
project’s preliminary stage and post-implementation stage are expensed as incurred. Application development activities that are eligible for
capitalization include software design and configuration, development of interfaces, coding, testing, and installation. Capitalized internal-use
software and systems costs are subsequently amortized on a straight-line basis over a three to seven-year period after project completion and
when the related software or system is ready for its intended use. There was no amortization expense related to internal-use software in the
periods ended December 31, 2021 or 2020.
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The cost of each major class of property and equipment at December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

(in thousands) Useful life in years 2021 2020
Property and equipment 3-5 $18,283 $11,793
Internal-use software 3-7 429 --
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 319 210
Building 39 308 306
Property and equipment, gross 19,339 12,309
Accumulated depreciation (8,968) (5,395)
Property and equipment, net $ 10,371 $ 6,914

Depreciation expense was $3,696,000 and $2,138,000 in 2021 and 2020, respectively. These expenses are included in general and
administrative expenses or, for assets associated with our processing data centers, are included in cost of services.

Intangible Assets — The Company has intangible assets that consist of customer relationships that are recorded in connection with acquisitions
at their fair value based on the purchase price of the asset. Customer relationships are amortized over the life of the related contract. Intangible
assets with finite lives are reviewed for impairment following the same approach as long-lived assets. Amortization expense related to intangible
assets was $100,000 in 2021 and no amortization expense was recorded in 2020. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, the value of
intangible assets net of accumulated amortization was $300,000 and $0, included in other long-term assets on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

Investments — For entities in which we have a 20 to 50 percent ownership interest and over which we exercise significant influence, but do not
have control, we account for investments in privately-held companies under the equity method, whereby we record our proportional share of
the investee’s net income or net loss as an adjustment to the carrying value of the investment. We account for investments of less than 20
percent in non-marketable equity securities of corporations at the lower of cost or market. Our policy with respect to investments is to record
an impairment charge when we conclude that an investment has experienced a decline in value. We have elected to use the measurement
alternative for our non-marketable equity securities, defined as cost adjusted for changes from observable transactions for identical or similar
investments of the same issuer, less impairment. At least quarterly, we review our investments to determine any impairment in their carrying
value and we write-down any impaired asset at quarter-end to our best estimate of its current realizable value. Any such charges could have
a material adverse impact on our financial condition or results of operations and are generally not predictable in advance.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the aggregate value of investments was $6,355,000 and $1,921,000, respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — The carrying value of cash, accounts receivable, notes receivable, accounts payable and certain other
financial instruments (such as accrued expenses and other current assets and liabilities) included in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets approximates their fair value principally due to the short-term maturity of these instruments.

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash, trade accounts and notes receivable.
Our available cash is held in accounts managed by third-party financial institutions. Cash may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, or FDIC, insurance limits. While we monitor cash balances on a regular basis and adjust the balances as appropriate, these
balances could be impacted if the underlying financial institutions fail. To date, we have experienced no loss or lack of access to our cash;
however, we can provide no assurances that access to our cash will not be impacted by adverse conditions in the financial markets.

A concentration of credit risk may exist with respect to trade receivables, as a substantial portion of our customers are concentrated in the financial
services industry.

We perform ongoing credit evaluations of customers worldwide and do not require collateral from our customers. Historically, we have not
experienced significant losses related to receivables from individual customers or groups of customers in any particular industry or geographic
area.

Fair Value Measurements — In determining fair value, we use quoted market prices in active markets. Generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) establishes a fair value measurement framework, provides a single definition of fair value, and requires expanded disclosure
summarizing fair value measurements. GAAP emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific
measurement. Therefore, a fair value measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that market participants would use in
pricing an asset or liability.

GAAP establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of
unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable input be used when available. Observable inputs are based on data obtained from
sources independent of the Company that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect
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the Company’s assumptions about the estimates market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best
information available in the circumstances.

The hierarchy is measured in three levels based on the reliability of inputs:

+ Level 1 - Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access. Valuation
adjustments and block discounts are not applied to Level 1 instruments.

+ Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices in less active, dealer or broker markets. Fair values are primarily obtained from third party pricing
services for identical or comparable assets or liabilities.

* Level 3 - Valuations derived from other valuation methodologies, including pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques,
and not based on market, exchange, dealer, or broker-traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections
that are not observable in the market and significant professional judgment is needed in determining the fair value assigned to such assets or
liabilities.

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in
the fair value hierarchy within which the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety.

The fair value of equity method investments has not been determined as it is impracticable to do so due to the fact that the investee companies
are relatively small, early stage private companies for which there is no comparable valuation data available without unreasonable time and
expense. The fair value of our cost method investments was determined using Level 3 inputs.

Revenue Recognition — Product revenue consists of fees from software licenses. Service revenue consists of fees for processing services;
professional services for software customization, consulting, training; reimbursable expenses; and software maintenance and customer
support.

Our software license arrangements generally fall into one of the following four categories:

¢ aninitial contract with the customer to license certain software modules, to provide services to get the customer live on the software (such
as training and customization) and to provide post contract support (‘PCS”) for a specified period of time thereafter,

e purchase of additional licenses for new modules or for tier upgrades for a higher volume of licensed accounts,

e other optional standalone contracts, usually performed after the customer is live on the software, for services such as new interfaces or
custom features requested by the customer, additional training and problem resolution not covered in annual maintenance contracts, or

e contracts for certain licensed software products that involve an initial fee plus recurring monthly fees during the contract life.

At contract inception, we assess the products and services promised in our contracts with customers and identify a performance obligation for
each promise to transfer to the customer a product or service (or bundle of products or services) that is distinct. A performance obligation is
distinct if a product or service is separately identifiable from other items in the bundled package and if a customer can benefit from it on its own
or with other resources that are readily available to the customer. To identify our performance obligations, we consider all of the products or
services promised in the contract regardless of whether they are explicitly stated or are implied by customary business practices. We recognize
revenue when or as we satisfy a performance obligation by transferring control of a product or service to a customer. Our revenue recognition
policies for each of the situations described above are discussed below.

Our software licenses generally have significant stand-alone functionality to the customer upon delivery and are considered to be functional
intellectual property. Additionally, the purpose in granting these software licenses to a customer is typically to provide the customer a right to
use our intellectual property. Our software licenses are generally considered distinct performance obligations, and revenue allocated to the
software license is typically recognized at a point in time upon delivery of the license. Initial implementation fees do not meet the criteria for
separate accounting because the software usually requires significant modification or customization that is essential to its functionality. We
recognize revenue related to implementations over the life of the customer once the implementation is complete.

We account for the PCS element contained in the initial contract based on relative standalone selling price, which is annual renewal fees for
such services, and PCS is recognized ratably on a straight-line basis over the period specified in the contract as we generally satisfy these
performance obligations evenly using a time-elapsed output method over the contract term given there is no discernible pattern of performance.
Upon renewal of the PCS contract by the customer, we recognize revenues ratably on a straight-line basis over the period specified in the
PCS contract. All of our software customers purchase software maintenance and support contracts and renew such contracts annually.

Certain initial software contracts contain specified future service elements for scheduled completion following the implementation, and related
recognition, of the initial license. In these instances, after the initial license recognition, where distinct future performance obligations are
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identified in the contract and we could reliably measure the completion of each identified performance obligation, we have recognized revenue
at the time the individual performance obligation was completed.

Purchases of additional licenses for tier upgrades or additional modules are generally recognized as license revenue in the period in which the
purchase is made for perpetual licenses or ratably over the remaining contract term for non-perpetual licenses.

Services provided under standalone contracts that are optional to the customer and are outside of the scope of the initial contract are single
element services contracts. These standalone services contracts are not essential to the functionality of the software contained in the initial
contract and generally do not include acceptance clauses or refund rights as may be included in the initial software contracts, as described
above. Revenues from these services contracts, which are generally performed within a relatively short period of time, are recognized when
the services are complete or in some cases as the services are provided. These revenues generally re-occur as contracts are renewed.
Payment terms for professional services may be based on an upfront fixed fee with the remainder due upon completion or on a time and
materials basis.

For contracts for licensed software which include an initial fee plus recurring monthly fees for software usage, maintenance and support, we
recognize the total fees ratably on a straight-line basis over the estimated life of the contract as services revenue.

Revenues from processing services are typically volume- or activity-based depending on factors such as the number of accounts processed,
number of accounts on the system, number of hours of services or computer resources used. For processing services which include an initial
fee plus recurring monthly fees for services, we recognize the initial fees ratably on a straight-line basis over the estimated life of the contract
as services revenue. The payment terms may include tiered pricing structures with the base tier representing a minimum monthly usage fee.
For processing services revenues, we stand ready to provide continuous access to our processing platforms and perform an unspecified
quantity of outsourced and transaction-processing services for a specified term or terms. Accordingly, processing services are generally viewed
as a stand-ready performance obligation comprised of a series of distinct daily services. We typically satisfy our processing services
performance obligations over time as the services are provided.

Technology or service components from third parties are frequently embedded in or combined with our products or service offerings. We are
often responsible for billing the client in these arrangements and transmitting the applicable fees to the third party. We determine whether we
are responsible for providing the actual product or service as a principal, or for arranging for the solution or service to be provided by the third
party as an agent. Judgment is applied to determine whether we are the principal or the agent by evaluating whether we have control of the
product or service prior to it being transferred to the customer. The principal versus agent assessment is performed at the performance
obligation level. Indicators that we consider in determining if we have control include whether we are primarily responsible for fulfilling the
promise to provide the specified product or service to the customer, whether we have inventory risk and discretion in establishing the price the
customer ultimately pays for the product or service. Depending upon the level of our contractual responsibilities and obligations for delivering
solutions to end customers, we have arrangements where we are the principal and recognize the gross amount billed to the customer and
other arrangements where we are the agent and recognize the net amount retained.

Revenue is recorded net of applicable sales tax.

Deferred Revenue — Deferred revenue consists of advance payments by software customers for annual or quarterly PCS, advance payments
from customers for software licenses and professional services not yet delivered, and initial implementation payments for processing services
or bundled license and support services in multi-year contracts. We do not anticipate any loss under these arrangements. Deferred revenue
is classified as long-term until such time that it becomes likely that the services or products will be provided within 12 months of the balance
sheet date.

Cost of Revenue — For cost of revenue for software contracts, we capitalize the contract specific direct costs, which are included in other
current assets and other long-term assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and recognize the costs when the associated revenue is
recognized. Cost of revenue for services includes direct cost of services rendered, including reimbursed expenses, pass-through third party
costs, and data center, network association and compliance costs for processing services. We also capitalize the initial implementation fees
for processing services contracts and recognize the costs over the life of the contract when the corresponding revenue is recognized.

Software Development Expense — Research and development costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Contract specific
software development costs are capitalized and recognized when the related contract revenue is recognized.

Warranty Costs —The warranty related to software license contracts consists of a defined number of months (usually three) of PCS after the
go-live date, which is accrued as of the go-live date and recognized over the warranty period.

Legal Expense — Legal expenses for continuing operations are recorded as a component of general and administrative expense in the period
in which such expenses are incurred.

F-12



Research and Development — Research and development costs consist principally of compensation and benefits paid to certain Company
employees and certain other direct costs. All research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Stock Based Compensation — We record compensation cost related to unvested stock-based awards by recognizing the unamortized grant
date fair value on a straight line basis over the vesting periods of each award. We have estimated forfeiture rates based on our historical
experience. Stock option compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 has been recognized as a component of
general and administrative expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. We recorded $318,000 and $386,000 of stock-
based compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Pursuant to the 2020 Non-employee Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan, there were 4,443 shares granted in the year ended December 31, 2021,
and a total of 4,380 shares were granted in the year ended December 31, 2020. No options were granted in 2021 and 2020.

The fair value of the grants are being amortized over the vesting period for the options. All of the Company’s stock-based compensation
expense relates to stock options and stock grants. The total remaining unrecognized compensation cost at December 31, 2021 related to
unvested options was $11,000 and is expected to be recognized by the first quarter of 2022.

Income Taxes — We account for income taxes under the liability method. We record deferred income taxes using enacted tax laws and rates
for the years in which the taxes are expected to be paid. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recorded based on the differences
between the financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities. We assess whether it is more likely than not that we will generate
sufficient taxable income to realize our deferred tax assets. We record a valuation allowance, as necessary, to reduce our deferred tax assets
to the amount of future tax benefit that we estimate is more likely than not to be realized.

We record tax benefits for positions that we believe are more likely than not of being sustained under audit examinations. We assess the
potential outcome of such examinations to determine the adequacy of our income tax accruals. We recognize interest and penalties accrued
related to unrecognized tax benefits in the provision for income taxes on our Consolidated Statements of Operations. We adjust our income
tax provision during the period in which we determine that the actual results of the examinations may differ from our estimates or when statutory
terms expire. Changes in tax laws and rates are reflected in our income tax provision in the period in which they occur.

Comprehensive Income (Loss) — Comprehensive income (loss) represents net income adjusted for the results of certain stockholders’ equity
changes not reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. These items are accumulated over time as “accumulated other
comprehensive loss” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and consist primarily of net earnings/loss and foreign currency translation
adjustments associated with foreign operations that use the local currency as their functional currency.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, to require financial assets carried
at amortized cost to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected based on historical experience, current conditions and forecasts.
Subsequently, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-19, Codification Improvements to Topic 326, to clarify that receivables arising from operating
leases are within the scope of lease accounting standards. Further, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-04, ASU No. 2019-05, ASU 2019-10 and
ASU 2019-11 to provide additional guidance on the credit losses standard. The ASUs are effective for interim and annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2022, with early adoption permitted. Adoption of the ASUs is on a modified retrospective basis. We plan to adopt the ASUs
on January 1, 2023. The ASUs are currently not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Adopted

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes. This standard
simplifies the accounting for income taxes by eliminating certain exceptions to the guidance in Topic 740 related to the approach for intra-
period tax allocation, the methodology for calculating income taxes in an interim period and the recognition of deferred tax liabilities for outside
basis differences. The new guidance also simplifies aspects of the accounting for franchise taxes and enacted changes in tax laws or rates
and clarifies the accounting for transactions that result in a step-up in the tax basis of goodwill and allocating consolidated income taxes to
separate financial statements of entities not subject to income tax. This standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2020, with early adoption permitted. We adopted this standard in the first quarter of 2021 and the adoption did not have a material impact on
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In January 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-01, Investments-Equity Securities (Topic 321), Investments-Equity Method and Joint Ventures
(Topic 323), and Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Clarifying the Interactions between Topic 321, Topic 323, and Topic 815 (“ASU 2020-
017), which clarifies certain interactions between the guidance to account for certain equity securities, investments under the equity method of
accounting and forward contracts or purchased options to purchase securities under Topic 321, Topic 323 and Topic 815. For public entities,
ASU 2020-01 is effective for fiscal years, including interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2020. We adopted
this standard in the first quarter of 2021 and the adoption did not have a material impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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We have considered all other recently issued accounting pronouncements and do not believe the adoption of such pronouncements will have a
material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

2. REVENUE
Disaggregation of Revenue

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by type of revenue for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Year ended December 31, (in thousands) 2021 2020
License $ 5,865 $ 3,600
Professional services 25,159 20,610
Processing and maintenance 14,113 10,228
Third party 3,111 1,435
Total $ 48,248 $ 35,873

Foreign revenues are based on the location of the customer. Revenues from customers by geographic areas for the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Year ended December 31, (in thousands) 2021 2020
United States $ 46,733 $ 34,864
European Union 719 1,009
Middle East 796 -
Total $ 48,248 $ 35,873

3. INVESTMENTS

Beginning in 2017, and in subsequent periods we entered into a Loan Agreement and various Promissory Notes with a privately held identity
and professional services company with ties to the FinTech industry. In June 2019, we converted the Loan Agreement and all Promissory
Notes into equity resulting in ownership of 40 percent of the company. The carrying value of our investment was $1,822,000 at December 31,
2021, included in investments on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. In 2021, the company transferred its advisory business to a new entity.
We contributed our note receivable of $2,806,000 and $800,000 of cash for a 28% ownership interest in the new entity. The carrying value of
our investment in the new entity was $3,615,000 at December 31, 2021, included in investments on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. We
continue to hold a 40 percent ownership interest in the original company which will continue with its events and media operations. We performed
a valuation analysis on each investment, which indicated that the fair value of the investment was higher than the carrying value and therefore
not impaired. We account for our investments using the equity method of accounting which resulted in losses of $172,000 and $400,000 for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, included in investment income (loss) on the Consolidated Statement of
Operations. We evaluate on a continuing basis whether any impairment indicators are present that would require additional analysis or write-
downs of the investment. While we have not recorded an impairment related to these investments as of December 31, 2021, variations from
current expectations could result in future impairment charges.

On December 30, 2016 we signed an agreement to invest $1,000,000 in a privately held technology company and program manager in the
FinTech industry. The investment was funded on January 4, 2017. In the quarter ended June 30, 2018, we recorded an impairment charge of
$250,000 to reduce the carrying value due to the investee’s limited funding to support its operation and sales and marketing efforts. In the
quarter ended March 31, 2020, due to the uncertainty from the economic downturn resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, we determined
that the fair value of our investment was $0 and therefore we recorded an impairment charge of $750,000, included in investment loss on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the quarter ended March 31, 2020. CoreCard remains in an ongoing business relationship with the
company pursuant to a Processing Agreement and a Program Management Services Agreement. CoreCard is positioned to assume the
program management aspects of the investee company if the need should arise to ensure their program(s) ongoing viability and the completion
of the Processing Agreement with CoreCard. As program manager for this company, we receive cash periodically to fund the customer’s
various programs. We held $706,000 and $3,335,000 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, in cash on behalf of this customer which
is included in other current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

In the second quarter of 2021, we invested $1,000,000 in a privately held company that provides supply chain and receivables financing. The
carrying amount of $1,000,000 is accounted for at cost and is included in investments on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND CUSTOMER CONCENTRATIONS

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, our allowance for doubtful accounts was $0. There were no charges against the allowance for doubtful
accounts in 2021 or 2020.

The following table indicates the percentage of consolidated revenue from continuing operations and year-end accounts receivable represented
by each customer that represented more than 10 percent of consolidated revenue from continuing operations or year-end accounts receivable.

Revenue Accounts Receivable
2021 2020 2021 2020

Customer A 71% 69% 65% 59%
Customer B 6% 10% 8% 6%
Customer C 1% 2% 0% 10%

5. NOTES RECEIVABLE

During the quarter ended September 30, 2017, we entered into a Loan Agreement with a privately-held identity and professional services
company with ties to the FinTech industry. We committed to lend up to $1,500,000 all of which has been advanced as of December 31, 2019.
During 2018, we advanced $550,000 on three separate simple Promissory Note(s). As discussed in Note 3, we converted the Loan Agreement
and all outstanding Promissory Notes to an equity ownership of 40 percent of the company. At the same time, we entered into and advanced
a $1,000,000 Loan Agreement that bears interest at the rate of 6.0 percent annually with a maturity date of June 2021. In October 2019 and
January 2020, we entered into Loan Agreements and advanced an additional $500,000 and $1,000,000, respectively, that bears interest at
the rate of 6.0 percent annually with maturity dates of October 2021 and January 2022, respectively. In 2021, the company transferred its
advisory business to a new entity. We contributed our note receivable of $2,806,000 and $800,000 of cash for a 28% ownership interest in the
new entity.

In the quarter ended March 31, 2018, we entered into a Convertible Loan Agreement with a private limited India based company in the FinTech
industry. We committed to lend up to $435,000 with an initial advance of $235,000. The loan bears interest at the rate of 5.0 percent annually
with the maturity date on the third anniversary of funding of such Promissory Note. We are entitled to convert the principal on the initial note
for up to ten percent ownership of shares of the company. For the quarter ended March 31, 2020, we determined that the principal and interest
is likely not collectible and therefore recorded a valuation allowance of $259,000, included in investment loss on the Consolidated Statement
of Operations.

In February 2021, we entered into and advanced a $550,000 Promissory Note with a privately held technology company and program manager
in the FinTech industry, discussed further in Note 3. The note bears interest at the rate of 4.6 percent annually with the maturity date of October
2023.

6. INCOME TAXES

The income tax provision from operations consists of the following:

Year ended December 31, (in thousands) 2021 2020
Current $ 2,951 $ 1,925
Deferred (227) 543
Total $ 2,724 $ 2,468
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The following is a reconciliation of estimated income taxes at the statutory rate from operations to estimated tax expense (benefit) as reported:

Year ended December 31, 2021 2020
Statutory rate 21 % 21 %
State and local taxes, net of federal benefit 5.8 4.7
Equity compensation 0.3 0.3
Research and development credit (2.6) (2.5)
Foreign tax credit (1.3) 2.7
GILTl income inclusion - 1.8
Other - 0.6
Effective rate 23.2% 23.2%

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) consist of the following at December 31:

(in thousands) 2021 2020
Deferred tax (liabilities) assets:
Unrealized loss on investments $ 89 $ 788
Foreign Tax Credit 259 124
Fixed assets (1,335) (1,347)
Other 148 134
Total deferred tax liability (32) (301)
Less valuation allowance (517) (517)
Net deferred tax liability $ (549) $ (818)

We had net deferred tax liabilities of approximately $0.5 million and $0.8 million at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.
The gross deferred tax asset/liability has been offset by a valuation allowance of $0.5 million in 2021 and 2020, because the Company believes
that it is more likely than not that the amount will not be realized. We have maintained a valuation allowance on deferred tax assets resulting
from unrealized capital losses as we are not able to conclude that is it more likely than not that these will be realized due to the unpredictability
of future capital gains. No deferred taxes have been provided on temporary differences related to investments in foreign subsidiaries because
these investments are considered to be permanent.

We have recognized tax benefits from all tax positions we have taken, and there has been no adjustment to any carry forwards (net operating
loss or research and development credits) in the past two years. There were no unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.
Our policy is to recognize interest and penalties accrued on any unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense. There were
no accrued interest or penalties associated with any unrecognized tax benefits, nor was any interest expense recognized during the periods
presented. We have determined we have no uncertain tax positions.

We file a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return for all subsidiaries in which our ownership equals or exceeds 80%, as well as individual
subsidiary returns in various states and foreign jurisdictions. With few exceptions we are no longer subject to U.S. federal, state and local or
foreign income tax examinations by taxing authorities for returns filed more than three years ago.

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases

We have noncancelable operating leases for offices and data centers expiring at various dates through March 2026. These operating leases
are included in other long-term assets on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets and represent the Company’s right to use the
underlying asset for the lease term. The Company’s obligation to make lease payments are included in other current liabilities and long-term
lease obligation on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets. Operating lease right-of-use assets and liabilities are recognized at
commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. Because the rate implicit in each lease is not readily
determinable, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate to determine the present value of the lease payments.
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Supplemental Information-Leases

Supplemental information related to our right-of-use assets and related lease liabilities is as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
Right-of-use asset, net and lease liabilities (in thousands) $ 3,955 $2,889
Cash paid for operating lease liabilities (in thousands) $1,239 $ 1,052
Weighted average remaining lease term (years) 3.5 3.5
Weighted average discount rate 4.1% 3.8%

Maturities of our operating lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Operating Leases
(In thousands)

2022 $ 1,337
2023 1,265
2024 910
2025 515
Thereafter 181
Total lease liabilities $ 4,208

Lease expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 consisted of the following:

Year Ended December 31, (in thousands) 2021 2020

Cost of revenue $ 892 $ 725

General and administrative 272 214

Research and development 75 113

Total $ 1,239 $ 1,052
Legal Matters

On or about July 9, 2019, a securities class action complaint was filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York
(Case No. 1:19-cv-03949) by Michael Skrzeczkoski, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, against the company, and certain
current and former directors and officers. The complaint alleges, among other things, that certain of our press releases and SEC filings were
misleading as a result of the failure to disclose alleged related party transactions affecting revenue recognition and the absence of disclosure
regarding certain allegations against former director Parker H. Petit in connection with his former position with MiMedx, Inc. The complaint
seeks to recover attorney’s fees and costs and unspecified damages on behalf of purchasers who acquired our stock during the period from
January 23, 2019, through May 29, 2019, and purportedly suffered financial harm as a result of the alleged misleading statements. On
September 26, 2019, the Court appointed Edgardo Canez as lead plaintiff (“Lead Plaintiff’) on behalf of the putative class. On November 18,
2019, Lead Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of a putative class of persons or entities who purchased or otherwise acquired publicly traded
company securities from May 23, 2014 through May 29, 2019, filed an amended class action complaint against the company, and certain
current and former directors and officers (the “Amended Complaint”). The Amended Complaint alleges similar allegations in violation of
Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act as the previously filed complaint. The Amended Complaint seeks to recover attorney’s
fees and costs and unspecified damages. On January 2, 2020, Defendants submitted a motion to dismiss, and on March 3, 2020, briefing on
the motion to dismiss was completed. On April 6, 2021, the Court entered an order granting the motion to dismiss without prejudice. On August
18, 2021, the Court filed an opinion, granting Defendants’ motion to dismiss without prejudice and gave Lead Plaintiff twenty-one days to seek
leave to amend. On October 6, 2021, the district court entered judgment dismissing the case without prejudice.

On or about February 14, 2020, two purported shareholders, derivatively and on behalf of the Company, filed substantially similar shareholder
derivative actions in the Eastern District of New York against certain current and former directors and officers (the “Individual Defendants”),
and the Company as a nominal defendant (together with the Individual Defendants, the “Defendants”). The complaints assert a claim against
Messrs. Strange, Moise, Petit, Fuzzell and Chandler for a violation of Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act by issuing purportedly
misleading statements in the Company’s 2017 and 2018 Proxies. The complaints also assert claims against the Individual Defendants for
breaches of fiduciary duty, waste of corporate assets, and unjust enrichment arising out of, among other things, purportedly undisclosed related
party transactions, other relationships, and certain allegations against former director Parker H. Petitin connection with his former position with
MiMedx, Inc. and other companies. The relief sought in the complaints includes changes to the Company’s corporate governance procedures,
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unspecified damages, equitable relief, restitution, and attorney’s fees and costs. On April 20, 2020, the two derivative actions were consolidated
and captioned, In re Intelligent Systems Corporation Stockholder Derivative Litigation, Lead Case No. 1:20-cv-00832, in the Eastern District of
New York (the “Derivative Matter”). On June 19, 2020, Defendants filed their motion to dismiss. After a conference held on August 24, 2020,
the parties agreed that Defendants’ motion to dismiss would be temporarily withdrawn without prejudice to refile after the conclusion of any
discovery permitted by further Court order. On September 8, 2020, Plaintiffs moved for leave to conduct limited discovery (“Plaintiffs’ Motion
for Discovery”). On December 23, 2020, the Court entered a stipulation among the parties whereby Plaintiffs’ Motion for Discovery shall be
withdrawn, the Company will engage in limited discovery, and the parties agree that the Derivative Matter shall be stayed pending resolution
of the motion to dismiss in the related above-mentioned securities litigation matter, among other things. On October 1, 2021, Plaintiffs filed a
notice of voluntary dismissal. On November 2, 2021, the district court entered an order dismissing the case without prejudice.

8. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

We maintain a 401(k) defined contribution plan covering all U.S. employees. Our matching contributions, net of forfeitures, under the plan,
which are optional and based on the level of individual participant's contributions, amounted to $58,000 and $46,000 in 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
The lease on our headquarters and primary facility in Norcross, Georgia is held by ISC Properties, LLC, an entity controlled by our Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer, J. Leland Strange. Mr. Strange holds a 100% ownership interest in ISC Properties, LLC. We paid rent of $265,000 and

$214,000 to ISC Properties, LLC in the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. We have determined that ISC Properties, LLC
is not a variable interest entity.
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10. STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS

A summary of all stock incentive plans for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was as follows:

Stock Incentives Stock Incentives Stock Incentives Stock Incentives
Granted Exercised Expired Cancelled
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
2003 Incentive Stock Plan? § N/A N/A 67,500 - - - - -
2015 Incentive Stock Plan® § - - - - - - - -
Non-Employee Directors’ Stock N/A N/A - - - - - -
Option Plan* §
2011 Non-Employee Directors N/A N/A - - - - - -
Stock Plan® §
2020 Non-Employee Directors’ 4,443 4,380 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Stock Incentive Plan® 1 §

Stock options under all plans are granted at an exercise price equal to fair value on the date of grant and vest over 2-3 years. The following is
a summary of all plans as of December 31, 2021:

Fully Vested and

Total of All Plans Exercisable Not Vested
Options Granted 1,356,500 49,000 10,000
Options Exercised 1,014,820 N/A N/A
Options Cancelled 282,680 N/A N/A

As of December 31, 2021, there was $11,000 of unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options granted under the plans, which is
expected to be recognized by the first quarter of 2022.

2 The 2003 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2003 Plan”) was instituted in March 2003. The 2003 Plan authorized the issuance of up to 450,000
options to purchase shares of common stock to officers and key employees, with vesting of such options occurring equally over a 3-year time
period. In 2013, the 2003 Plan expired with 197,500 options ungranted.
3 The 2015 Incentive Stock Plan (the “2015 Plan”) was approved by shareholders in June 2015, which authorizes the issuance of up to 750,000
options to purchase shares of common stock to employees and key consultants and advisors.
4 The Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the “Directors Plan”) was instituted in August 2000 that authorized the issuance of up to
200,000 options to purchase shares of common stock to non-employee directors. Upon adoption of the Directors Plan, each non-employee
director was granted an option to acquire 5,000 shares. At each Annual Meeting, each director receives a grant of 4,000 options, which vest
in 50% increments on the first and second anniversary. The Directors Plan expired in 2011, with 60,000 options ungranted.
5 The 2011 Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan (the “2011 Directors Plan”) was approved by shareholders in May 2011 with essentially the
same terms and conditions as the Directors Plan.
6 The 2020 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan (the “2020 Plan”) was approved by shareholders in August 2020, which replaces
the 2011 Director Plan and authorizes the issuance of 200,000 shares of common stock to non-employee directors. We expect to grant each
independent director $50,000 of stock on the date of each subsequent Annual Meeting.
§ Indicates plans with stock options.
1 Indicates plans with stock grants.
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Stock option activity during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was as follows:

2021 2020
Options outstanding at January 1 126,500 126,500
Options cancelled - -
Options exercised 67,500 -
Options granted - -
Options outstanding at December 31 59,000 126,500
Options available for grant at December 31 881,177 885,620
Options exercisable at December 31 49,000 102,500
Exercise price ranges per share:
Granted N/A N/A
Exercised $152-$1.72 N/A
Outstanding $350-$39.11  $1.52-$39.11
Weighted average exercise price per share:
Granted - -
Exercised $ 159 -
Outstanding at December 31 $17.35 $8.94
Exercisable at December 31 $16.81 $ 5.61

The following tables summarize information about the stock options outstanding under the Company’s option plans as of
December 31, 2021.

Options Outstanding:
Wagt. Avg. Contractual
Range of Number Life Remaining (in Wat. Avg. Aggregate
Exercise Price Outstanding years) Exercise Price Intrinsic Value
$3.50 - $3.86 13,000 6.0 $ 375 $ 528,960
$7.80 8,000 5.8 $ 7.80 $ 174700
$19.99 30,000 6.4 $19.99 $ 564,300
$39.11 8,000 74 $39.11 $ -
$3.50 - $39.11 59,000 6.6 $17.35 $ 1,267,960

Options Exercisable:
Wat. Avg. Contractual

Range of Number Life Remaining (in Wat. Avg. Aggregate
Exercise Price Exercisable years) Exercise Price Intrinsic Value
$3.50 - $3.86 13,000 5.2 $ 375 $ 528,960
$7.80 8,000 6.5 $ 7.80 $ 174,700
$19.99 20,000 6.5 $19.99 $ 376,200
$39.11 8,000 6.5 $ 39.11 $ -
$3.50 - $39.11 49,000 6.5 $ 16.81 $ 1,079,860

Aggregate intrinsic value represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the difference between the Company’s closing stock price on the last
trading day of the year ended December 31, 2021, and the exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money options) that would have
been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options on December 31, 2021. The amount of aggregate intrinsic
value will change based on the fair value of the Company’s common stock.

11. FOREIGN OPERATIONS

In 2003, we established a subsidiary of CoreCard Software in Romania for software development and testing activities. In 2006, we established
a subsidiary in India for additional software development and testing activities as well as support for processing operations. In October 2020,
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we opened an office in Dubai, United Arab Emirates to support CoreCard’s expansion of processing services into new markets in the Asia
Pacific, Middle East, Africa and European regions. In October 2021, we opened a new location in Bogota, Colombia where we expect to hire
technical personnel to support existing customers and continued growth. With the exception of a facility in India which was acquired in 2007 to
house our India-based employees and which had a net book value of $150,000 and $156,000 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively,
substantially all long-lived assets are in the United States.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, continuing operations of foreign subsidiaries had assets of $5,079,000 and $1,958,000, respectively, and
total liabilities of $3,886,000 and $1,754,000, respectively. The majority of these assets and liabilities are in India. There are no currency
exchange restrictions related to our foreign subsidiaries that would affect our financial position or results of operations. Refer to Note 1 for a
discussion regarding how we account for translation of non-U.S. currency amounts.

12. INDUSTRY SEGMENTS

Management considers our subsidiaries, consisting of CoreCard and its affiliate companies, to be one operating segment. Historically, we
have described this industry segment as Information Technology Products and Services but as our Company and the financial software and
services industries have evolved, we now consider the financial transaction solutions and services (“FinTech”) industry segment to be more
appropriate.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income (numerator) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
(denominator) during the period and excludes the dilutive effect of stock options. Diluted earnings per share gives effect to all dilutive potential
common shares outstanding during a period. In computing diluted income per share, the average stock price for the period is used in determining
the number of shares assumed to be reacquired under the treasury stock method for the hypothetical exercise of stock options.

The following tables represent required disclosure of the reconciliation of the income (loss) and the shares used in the basic and diluted income
(loss) per share computation:

Year ended December 31, (in thousands, except per share data): 2021 2020
Numerator:
Net Income $ 9,039 $ 8,161
Denominator:
Weighted-average basic shares outstanding 8,777 8,920
Effect of dilutive securities 33 95
Weighted-average diluted shares 8,810 9,015
Basic earnings per share $ 1.03 $ 0.91
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.03 $ 0.91

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were 33,000 and 95,000 dilutive stock options exercisable, respectively.
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New York, New York 10038

(800) 937-5449

www.amstock.com

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held
May 26, 2022 at 4:00 p.m. at our principle executive offices at
One Meca Way, Norcross, GA 30093.

Communication from the Company

SEC-filed reports and press releases are posted on the Company’s
website at www.corecard.com.

The Company will mail SEC-filed reports to shareholders upon
request to:

CoreCard Corporation
One Meca Way
Norcross, Georgia 30093
(770) 381-2900
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